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7 1
DJ-UBSCI 2014
DJ-UBSCI
8 9 10 11 12 13
2013 12 31| 2014 12 31| 2015 12 31| 2016 12 31| 2017 12 31 2018 12 31
@ 27,056,486 | 24,049,453 | 20,963,911 | 19,531,251 | 22,352,813 22,128,940
2,969,314 2,639,307 2,300,684 2,143,457 2,453,109 2,428,541
) ) ) )) ))
® 0 0 0 0 0 0
© ) © ) © ) © ) © ) 0
© 24,154,448 | -8,459,703 | 59,317,835 | -31,689,995 | 28,919,555 53,066,805
-2,650,830 -928,410 6,509,836 | -3,477,819 3,173,777 5,823,817
) ) ) ) )
(@ 2 24,154,446 | -32,614,149 | 26,703,686 | 4,986,309 | 23,933,246 | -29,133,560
-2,650,830 -3,579,240 2,930,596 -547,222 2,626,554 3,197,263
) ) ) ) )
© 2 2 2 2 2 2
16 24,154,446 | -32,614,149 | 26,703,686 | -4,986,309 | 23,933,246 | -29,133,560
-547,222 2,626,554 -3,197,263
-2,650,830 -3,579,240 2,930,596 ) N
) ) N
@) 3,441,769,125 [3,271,797,352 |2,856,444,914 |3,405,115,744 |3,572,778,104 | 3,121,103,273
392,094,533 342,525,479
377,716,953 359,063,400 313,480,547 373,694,427 N
) ) ) )
) 1 12,077,223 | -16,307,075 | 13,351,843 | -2,493,155 | 11,966,623 14,566,780
1,325,415  -1,789,620 1,465,298 -273,611 1,313,277 1,598,631
) )
) ) )
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1 -12,077,224 -4,229,852 29,658,917 | -15,844,998 14,459,778 -26,533,403
-1,325,415 -464,205) 3,254,918 -1,738,909 1,586,888 -2,911,908
7
) ) ) ) )
0)) 0 0 0 0 0 0
(© ) (© ) (© ) (© ) (© ) 0
k1 0 0 0 0 0 0
(© ) (© ) (© ) (© ) (© )
) -0.7018% -0.9968% 0.9349% -0.1464% 0.6699% -0.9334
()
(m) -100.0000% 25.9387% 222.1335% -635.5401% 120.8342% 182.1501
9
ETFS Management Company (Jersey
Limited)
ETFS Holdings (Jersey) Limited
1
1
A.
ETFS Commodity
Securities Limited 14 ETFS
9 5
ETF Securities
Limited ETFSL
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1 3 1
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ETFS
ETFS
ETFS
ETFS
ETFS
ETFS

WTl1

6/184



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooDOo00oDo0oDo0ooo00noogdnoE?23770)
OOoooooooooooaooao

X /10

7/184



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooDOo00oDo0oDo0ooo00noogdnoE?23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

1
(Commodity Index) 5
9 5
ETFS
ETFS
ETFS
ETFS
ETFS
2.
2020 1
19,725,345 28,050,037 - 35,369,738
WTI -
84,203 120,000 513,911 151,229
23,808 33,856 144,868 - 42,691
9,157 13,022 55,716 - 16,419
15,950 22,682 97,069 - 28,604
12,489 18,092 77,730 22,634
119,059 920,992 171,247 213,357
24,058 185,634 34,517 43,171
34,038 262,168 48,808 61,093
20,095 155,528 28,909 36,029
65,114 819,405 93,678 116,755
20,371 255,976 29,271 36,519
47,803 300,461 68,774
251,500 1,580,343 361,843
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399,550 703,304 959,188 574,839
40,164 70,701 96,429 57,786
578,675 1,018,615 1,389,226 832,557
26,345 46,359 63,273 37,893
4,050 7,120 5,822
34,790 61,199 197,096 50,033
48,842 85,970 276,780 70,270
234,437 410,878 1,324,749 336,260
78,007 136,506 111,752
2020 1
44,229,258 29,330,722 36,481,123 37,239,006 41,392,604 42,237,359 27,483,405
ul 125,334 155,673 159,017 176,766 180,504 117,317
35,402 44,032 44,944 49,958 50,976 33,170
13,616 16,933 17,287 19,212 19,607 12,755
23,721 29,502 30,114 33,473 34,156 22,225
18,725 23,127 23,628 26,229 26,926 17,411
267,009 177,023 224,742 249,713 254,782 165,912
53,850 35,808 45,426 50,477 51,541 33,523
76,169 50,676 64,276 71,414 72,931 47,435
45,053 29,879 37,936 42,164 43,024 27,998
145,999 96,821 120,423 136,637 139,425 90,724
45,646 30,302 37,697 42,734 43,613 28,386
107,184 71,079 88,408 90,240 102,354 66,600
563,933 373,973 465,142 474,804 538,533 350,419
895,889 738,945 754,295 838,430 556,601
90,062 74,287 75,827 84,285 55,966
1,297,542 1,070,235 1,092,470 1,214,323 806,271
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59,079 48,759 49,729 55,258 36,711

9,077 7,497 7,645 8,494 5,644
77,991 64,362 65,676 72,990 74,477
109,516 90,331 92,204 102,492 104,582
524,603 433,733 442,707 491,952 502,384

174,445 144,371 147,319 163,674 167,198 108,708
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©
2005 8 16
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MLI BAC
BAC MLI MLI MLI
BAC
UBS MLI
(A)
MLI MLI

BAC
MLI MLI
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©
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The Law
Debenture Trust Corporation
p.l.c.

R&H Fund
Services (Jersey) Limited R&H

Computershare Investor

Services (Jersey) Limited
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Citigroup Global Markets
Limited

Merrill Lynch

International
MLI

MLI
MLI

CGMH

MLI
Bank of
America Corporation

Citigroup Global
Markets Holdings Inc. BAC

CGMH

CGMH

Q)

18

21
14
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ETC 2

24
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®)
1
©
(0))
4 1
2018 12 31
-29,133,560 -3,197,262,542
2
5
9 10 1 2 13
(014 12 31| (015 12 31| (2016 12 31| (017 12 31| 2018 12 31
) ) ) )
26,703, 686 24,986,300 | 23,933,246 |-29,133.560
24,154,446 | -32,614,149 ( ( (
2,930,596,020 | -547,222,481 | 2,626,554,082 -
2,650,829,676 | 3,579,239,782 ) ) ) [3,197,262,542
) )
2 2 2 2 2 2
2018 12 31
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2 100%
JE2  4WX

31
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SM

2014 7 1 CME
2014 7 1 (Dow Jones)

SM

http://www.bloombergindexes.com

1998 1991 1
3 S
3 2006 7 1991
2006 2 2008 3
2011 12
2012 12 2010 6
1991 1991

100

10SCO 19
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RIS
B.
LME
27
2a
1
1
NYMEX( 4) Henry Hub Natural Gas (NG) 3 5 7 9 11
1
NYMEX( 4) Light, Sweet Crude Oil (CL) 3 5 7 9 11
ICEC 3) Brent Crude 0il (B) 3 5 7 9 1 1
1
NYMEX( 4) RBOB Gasoline (RB) 3 5 7 9 11
- - 1
NYMEX( 4) Heating Oil (HO) 3 5 7 9 1
ICEC 3) Low Sulphur Gas Oil (QS) 3 5 7 9 1 1
LME High Grade Primary Aluminium (AL) 3 5 7 9 11 1
COMEX( 4) Copper (HG) 3 5 7 9 12
LME Special High Grade Zinc (2ZN) 3 5 7 11 1
LME Primary Nickel (NI) 3 5 7 11 1
COMEX( %) Gold (GC) 2 4 6 8 12
COMEX( 4) Silver (SI) 3 5 7 9 12
CME(C 2) Live Cattle (LC) 2 4 6 8 10 12
CME(C 2) Lean Hogs (LH) 2 4 6 8 10 12
CBOT( 2) Soft Wheat (W) 3 5 7 9 12
KCBT Kansas Wheat (KW) 3 5 7 9 12
CBOT( 2) Corn (C) 3 5 7 9 12
CBOT( 2) Soybeans (S) 3 5 7 11 1
NYBOT World Sugar No. 11 (SB) 3 5 7 10
NYBOT Cotton (CT) 3 5 7 12
NYBOT Coffee @C@ (KC) 3 5 7 9 12
CBOT( 2) Soybean Oil (BO) 3 5 7 11 1
CBOT( 2) Soybean Meal (SM) 3 5 7 11 1
NYBOT Cocoa (CC) 3 5 7 9 12
LME Refined Standard Lead (LL) 3 5 7 9 11 1
NYMEX( 4) Platinum (PL) 4 7 10 1
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11

Refined Tin (LT)

LME

D
2)

2007

Chicago Mercantile Exchange)

Chicago Board of Trade

( 3) ICE Futures US

CME

2008

New York Mercantile Exchange, Inc

4)

SM

SM

SM

SM

2b

SM

2019 3

2019 5

SM

15

2017 7

SM

2019 7

SM

SM

2b
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2a

11 1
12 1

2a 2b

T+2

CME

http://etfs.wisdomtree.eu/retail/uk/en-gh/pricing.aspx
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UBS CME

0.00000005 7

SM

la,ox Mayx PFG,o / 10

http://etfs.wisdomtree.eu/retail/uk/en-gb/pricing.aspx

Mdi, o

Md.o

Md.o

Mci.t-1)

1 CAu.p
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Mci,t-1)

CAa.p

100 1

http://etfs.wisdomtree.eu/retail/uk/en-gh/pricing.aspx

@)
)

@
(b)

http://etfs.wisdomtree.eu/retail/uk/en-gb/pricing.aspx
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2006 1 17

ETFS
10 1
10 1
2007 9 7
sw  ETFS 10 1
10
CME
SM
l.
1
0.00000005 7
2019 3 15
6.08209263 72.59633026
0.9890252 0.9890252
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0.6015343 7.179960000

1580343 300461

0.00000060 0.00000718

0.95063052 2.157297962 3.1079285

S 1

SM

7 RIS

RIS
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1
2
70 7,682
250,000,000 274
3,625 CIP
100
7,500,000 8 2,309
2013 1
7,500,000 8 2,309 250,000,000
274 3,625 CIP 100

RIS
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GV

@

rolling
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8
10
10 11
roll yield
backwardation
10
11
contango
3 S
/
(b)
3
S 3
SM
3 Si 3
3 S
/
3 SM
3 Sh

©
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CME UBS AG
CME
30

(@

/

MLI 70
7,000,000,000 768,215
2006 9

©

)
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)

daily price
fluctuation limit
limit price

MLI

UBS MLCI
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MLI BAC BAC

MLI
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EU
EU (2014/59/EU)( BRRD ) EU
( )
BRRD
BRAD
MLI  CGML BRRD BRRD
( )
BRRD
BRRD
MLI MLI CGML CGML
( )
BRRD (
)
SRR
( SRR ) SRR
@ ( GSIB )
( ) @
GSIB ®3)
SRR
SRR

@
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(b)
SRR
SRR
(
)
SRR
SRR 2019 1
2019 7 1
SRR
ISDA
SRR
@
(b)
© ( )
30

gross up)
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30

UBS

UBS UBS
BAC
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CME

)

)

2.5

RIS

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooDOo00oDo0oDo0ooo00noogdnoE?23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

30

2 RIS

20

60
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)
2.5

2.5

MLI 10
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UBS MLI BAC

Exchange Traded
Commodities; ETCs

25%
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@

(b)

UBS
UBS

DJ-
UBSCI UBS

UBS

MLI
MLI

)
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()
MLI MLI MLI

MLI

MLI
/
Supervisory
Committee
/
2013 2 14 EU
FTT
FTT
FTT
FTT
FTT
@
)
FTT

FTT

EU
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FTT
FTT
UcITS
UcITS
1985 12 20 85 611 EEC
UcITS
UcITS
ucITS ucITS
OECD
FATCA
OECD
CRS
CRS
CRS FATCA
CRS 2016 1 1 2015
« )
CRS
CRS
2015 2016 6 23 EU
EU 2017 3 29
50 ( 50
) 2019 10 31 EU
EU
EU U EU EU
2020 12 50
50
EU
EU
EU
EU
EU
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(b)

MLI
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(i) (i)
/
(a) 2018 (
EU EU
(b)
( ESMA )
FCA 27 EU
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Royal Bank of Scotland International

©
(D
IFRS 7
©)
Q)
CREST
1.
6 7
@
. 1—
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. 3—
(NAV)
2
2013 12 31 IFRS 13
2 1
(NAV)
2018 2017
3,121,166,614 342,532,430 3,506,478,236 384,818,454
3,001,983,052 339,329,680 3,530,411,481 387,445,008
3
500 69,515
500 69,515
500
69,515

47/184



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooDOo00oDo0oDo0ooo00noogdnoE?23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

0.49%
0.49%

0.05%

ETFSL
ETFSL

RIS
RIS 30

ETFSL

0.45%
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T
-0.00063%
-0.00104%

T 2018 6 26

*

Q)

)

©

©)

365

J 2018
2018

4 11
11 2

L 2018 4 11
2018 4 11
2018 4 11

2018 11 2

0%

24,450 3,399

3,198
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2018 6 26
-0.22969%
-0.37888%
ETFSL
12 31
2018 2017
8,000 8,000
(1,112,240)  (1,112,240)
1,315

(182,824.5)

23,000
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2)
20.315%
15.315% 5% 2038
20%
b)
3
©)
2016 1 1
2015 12 31
2016 1 1

2016 1 1 2016 12 31
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2018 4 1 31%
35

@

(b)

©

(D
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©)
2009 12 1

2009 12 1

2009 12 1
2009 12 1
2009 12 1

2009 12 1

2009 1 1

http://etfs.wisdomtree.eu/retail/uk/en-gb/pricing.aspx

Q)
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@
20%
2006 S.1. No.2006/964
/
/
2009 9 1
Q)
)
)
)
(1) OECD
FATCA
OECD
CRS
CRS
CRS FATCA
FATCA
CRS CRS

CRS
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1961
0.75% 10
2007 GST
.) GST
-
-)

FATCA

FATCA 30

54/184



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooDOo00oDo0oDo0ooo00noogdnoE?23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

30
2013 12 13 FATCA 2014 6
18 ( O )( )
2014
FATCA
FATCA
OECD
CRS CRS
CRS FATCA
CRS CRS
2016 1 1
CRS 2017 6 30
2017 6 30
2017 9 30
CRS
/
BEPS
2018 12 31
% (2
3,091,983,052 339,330 99.07
3,121,103,273 342,525 100.00
3,150,236,833 345,723 100.93( 3)
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-29,133,560 -3,197 ~0.93( 4)
1
2
3
4
2018 12 31
B

955,899,750 0 4 31,988,134 3,511 | 1.55
Wl

72,797,244 7 743 | 492,938,879 54,098 [23.88

142,614 19 2,126 2,762,807 303 | 0.13

24,501,360 3 318 71,038,920 7,796 | 3.44

6,927,911 24 2,665 | 168,247,302 18,464 | 8.15

40,759,051 10 1,132 | 420,591,298 46,158 [20.38

102,198,192 1 67 62,426,212 6,851 | 3.02

38,418,172 1 87 30,624,147 3,361 | 1.48

923,069 18 1,940 16,321,415 1,791 | 0.79

27,052,496 8 855 | 210,713,826 23,125 [10.21

11,193,167 3 363 37,026,501 4,063 | 1.79

17,104,748 11 1,178 | 183,538,125 20,142 | 8.89
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76,872,362 4 449 314,602,171 34,526 115.24

6,910,829 3 335 21,096,422 2,315 ] 1.02
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2016 4 2018 3
ETFS

(201é1 12 31 y| 57.624.604.48 6,324 .05

(201%2 12 31 y| 53.321.497.80 5,852 .03

(201é3 12 31 y| 31.988.133.64 3,511 .03

2018 4 46,839,929.60 5,140 .03

5 47,135,114.83 5,173 .03

6 44,464 ,995_42 4,880 .03

7 42,435,754.15 4,657 .03

8 43,423 ,584.70 4,766 .03

9 43,662,031.23 4,792 .03

10 44,728,911.43 4,909 .04

11 50,715,878.15 5,566 .05

12 31,988,133.64 3,511 .03

2019 1 33,804,161.60 3,710 .03

2 37,428,109.02 4,108 .03

3 34,211,131.37 3,755 .03

ETFS WTI
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1
11
2016 12 31 | 828,399,979.02 90,913 8.29 910
)
12
2017 12 31 | 699,923,155.89 76,813 8.62 945
)
13
2018 12 31| 492,938,879.48 54,098 6.77 743
)
2018 4 628,427,203.37 68,967 9.91| 1,087
5 577,288,493.05 63,355 9.70 | 1,065
6 606,651,070.32 66,577 10.55 1,158
7 573,900,780.79 62,983 10.02 | 1,100
8 566,357,340.94 62,155 10.28 | 1,128
9 593,757,634.88 65,162 10.87 | 1,192
10 547,268,077.78 60,060 9.75| 1,070
11 587,752,598.84 64,503 7.60 834
12 492,938,879.48 54,098 6.77 743
2019 1 548,499,444 .33 60,195 7.98 875
2 596,882,344.42 65,505 8.41 923
3 680,354,763.11 74,666 8.79 965
ETFS
1
11
2016 12 31 5,808,725.75 637 26.90 | 2,952
)
12
2017 12 31 5,152,882.09 566 27.33 | 2,999
)
13
2018 12 31 2,762,807.34 303 19.37 | 2,126
)
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2018 4 6,584,095.17 723 29.01 | 3,184
5 7,335,214.39 805 29.49 | 3,236
6 6,548,531.66 719 29.52 | 3,239
7 8,711,812.42 956 28.82 | 3,163
8 8,907,845.63 978 29.41 | 3,228
9 9,418,995.84 1,034 31.04 | 3,406
10 4,311,371.65 473 26.13 | 2,867
11 2,465,200.66 271 20.92 | 2,296
12 2,762,807.34 303 19.37 | 2,126
2019 1 4,280,446.68 470 20.37 | 2,235
2 4,820,249.86 529 22.93 | 2,517
3 5,685,483.85 624 24.48 | 2,686
ETFS
1
11
(2016 12 31| 91,296,627.84 10,019 2.72 299
12 )
(2017 12 31| 144,679,157.59 15,878 3.53 388
13 )
2018 12 31| 71,038,919.77 7,796 2.90 318
)
2018 4 129,778,753.91 14,243 3.53 387
5 128,226,544.90 14,072 3.60 395
6 121,250,826.62 13,307 3.36 369
7 97,834,338.78 10,737 3.27 359
8 104,370,514.53 11,454 3.35 368
9 54,736,137.26 6,007 3.26 358

60/184



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooDOo00oDo0oDo0ooo00noogdnoE?23770)
Ooooodooooooaoon

10 96,698,687.51 10,612 3.09 339
11 73,562,366.46 8,073 3.10 340
12 71,038,919.77 7,796 2.90 318
2019 1 80,919,144 .56 8,880 3.00 330
2 109,060,479.24 11,969 2.99 328
3 42,742,510.41 4,691 2.98 327
ETFS
1
11
2016 12 31| 177,117,581.08 19,438 24.44 1 2,682
12 )
2017 12 31| 266,202,153.53 29,214 31.20 | 3,425
13 >
2018 12 31| 168,247,302.49 18,464 24.29 | 2,665
)
2018 4 260,419,911.77 28,580 28.75 | 3,155
5 263,569,668.98 28,925 28.68 | 3,148
6 218,492,851.28 23,978 27.61 ( 3,030
7 225,130,789.54 24,707 26.37 | 2,894
8 204,385,244 .94 22,430 2471 | 2,712
9 218,297,622.22 23,957 25.97 | 2,850
10 182,812,879.18 20,063 24.64 2,704
11 180,729,627.95 19,834 25.70 | 2,821
12 168,247,302.49 18,464 24.29 | 2,665
2019 1 189,045,047.33 20,747 25.73 | 2,824
2 200,555,976.91 22,010 27.21 | 2,986
3 200,072,411.05 21,957 27.13 | 2,977

ETFS
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1
11
2016 12 31 | 100,350,909.51 11,013 10.06 | 1,104
)
12
2017 12 31| 124,375,069.49 13,650 12.49 | 1,371
)
13
2018 12 31 | 420,591,298.14 46,158 10.32 | 1,132
)
2018 4 332,961,716.39 36,541 13.30 | 1,460
5 361,440,284.01 39,666 14.82 | 1,626
6 346,716,871.29 38,050 14.50 | 1,591
7 334,669,093.16 36,728 13.62 | 1,495
8 388,572,859.08 42,644 12.41| 1,362
9 407,990,960.56 44,775 12.20 | 1,339
10 430,408,553.14 47,235 11.13 | 1,222
11 431,043,352.60 47,305 10.83 | 1,189
12 420,591,298.14 46,158 10.32 | 1,132
2019 1 490,016,372.14 53,777 12.04 | 1,321
2 507,472,021.11 55,693 12.58 | 1,380
3 526,882,614.51 57,823 12.50 | 1,372
ETFS
1
11
2016 12 31| 89,510,637.51 9,823 0.69 76
)
12
2017 12 31| 94,778,957.71 10,402 0.60 66
)
13
2018 12 31| 62,426,212.17 6,851 0.61 67

)
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2018 4 107,010,148.96 11,744 .67 74
5 104,708,044 .91 11,491 .69 76
6 103,999,151.81 11,413 .64 70
7 107,634,719.74 11,812 .71 78
8 99,603,411.77 10,931 .67 74
9 90,374,895.76 9,918 .63 69
10 82,264,136.88 9,028 .62 68
11 69,705,221.08 7,650 .63 69
12 62,426,212.17 6,851 .61 67
2019 1 64,508,526.15 7,079 .63 69
2 59,052,332.94 6,481 .56 61
3 61,895,301.09 6,793 .55 61
ETFS
11
2016 12 31 | 38,275,033.60 4,200 .97 107
12 .
2017 12 31 | 39,575,756.53 4,343 .85 93
13 .
2018 12 31| 30,624,146.82 3,361 .80 87
)
2018 4 61,557,361.09 6,756 .93 102
5 61,523,558.98 6,752 91 100
6 55,234,524.21 6,062 .81 89
7 59,729,532.71 6,555 .84 92
8 50,212,121.66 5,511 .80 87
9 44,774,780.24 4,914 .78 85
10 42,489,393.86 4,663 .79 87
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11 36,879,415.67 4,047 0.80 88
12 30,624,146.82 3,361 0.80 87
2019 1 31,022,410.82 3,405 0.80 88
2 31,626,822.06 3,471 0.77 85
3 28,803,500.40 3,161 0.74 82
ETFS
1
11
2016 12 31 |14,342,590.21 1,574 22.32 | 2,449
12 )
2017 12 31 |14,491,714.34 1,590 20.27 | 2,224
13 )
2018 12 31 |16,321,415.20 1,791 17.68 | 1,940
)
2018 4 23,674,647.83 2,598 21.67 | 2,378
5 23,621,697.81 2,592 21.06 | 2,311
6 21,663,396.75 2,377 17.82 | 1,955
7 27,661,774.90 3,036 18.62 | 2,044
8 28,167,142.16 3,091 17.11| 1,877
9 20,783,448.15 2,281 17.16 | 1,883
10 17,567,208.41 1,928 17.03 | 1,869
11 18,227,934 .42 2,000 17.91 | 1,966
12 16,321,415.20 1,791 17.68 | 1,940
2019 1 10,584,450.47 1,162 18.10 | 1,987
2 10,868,004.13 1,193 17.75 | 1,948
3 10,136,735.43 1,112 17.26 | 1,894

ETFS
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1
11
2016 12 31| 386,929,476.36 42,464 .80 965
)
12
2017 12 31| 387,778,538.12 42,557 .93 980
)
13
2018 12 31| 210,713,825.60 23,125 .79 855
)
2018 4 363,054,839.78 39,843 .09 997
5 365,380,256.06 40,099 .21 1,010
6 341,364,867.34 37,463 .88 975
7 293,650,770.05 32,227 .68 952
8 281,898,251.69 30,937 .53 936
9 282,259,390.41 30,977 .70 954
10 256,285,289.81 28,126 .48 931
11 247,173,622.41 27,126 .38 920
12 210,713,825.60 23,125 .79 855
2019 1 224,296,112.00 24,615 .22 902
2 217,504,015.91 23,870 .29 910
3 211,867,191.92 23,251 .26 907
ETFS
1
11
2016 12 31| 86,934,773.91 9,541 .04 444
)
12
2017 12 31| 89,979,436.68 9,875 .87 425
)
13
2018 12 31| 37,026,500.58 4,063 .31 363
)
2018 4 58,761,064.82 6,449 .13 454
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5 60,078,972.07 6,593 4.24 465
6 111,774,439.97 12,267 4.35 478
7 109,370,060.98 12,003 4.16 456
8 122,029,828.61 13,392 4.31 473
9 111,775,627.42 12,267 4.53 498
10 103,762,766.63 11,387 4.27 468
11 97,726,443.04 10,725 4.06 446
12 37,026,500.58 4,063 3.31 363
2019 1 42,427,442 .33 4,656 3.61 396
2 48,131,675.55 5,282 3.81 418
3 42,069,819.64 4,617 3.83 420
ETFS
1
11
2016 12 31| 191,030,086.65 20,965 10.54 | 1,157
)
12
2017 12 31| 169,752,783.81 18,630 13.48 | 1,479
)
13
2018 12 31 | 183,538,124.73 20,142 10.73 | 1,178
)
2018 4 310,777,573.11 34,106 13.03 | 1,430
5 305,084,108.86 33,481 13.34 | 1,464
6 310,299,988.78 34,054 12.69 | 1,393
7 219,434,894.08 24,082 12.08 | 1,326
8 193,664,591.93 21,254 11.55| 1,268
9 215,437,178.16 23,643 11.79 | 1,293
10 201,530,646.31 22,117 11.12 | 1,221
11 197,999,095.63 21,729 11.32 | 1,242

66/184



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooDOo00oDo0oDo0ooo00noogdnoE?23770)
OoooobdooooooOoon

12 183,538,124.73 20,142 10.73 | 1,178
2019 1 243,851,694.07 26,762 11.58 | 1,271
2 344,545,253.34 37,812 11.98 | 1,315
3 353,804,784.16 38,828 12.08 | 1,325
ETFS
1
11
2016 12 31 | 219,462,634.09 24,085 5.27 578
)
12
2017 12 31| 269,631,816.61 29,591 4.64 510
)
13
2018 12 31| 314,602,170.92 34,526 4.09 449
)
2018 4 317,241,255.71 34,816 4.84 531
5 325,775,933.62 35,752 4.86 533
6 289,024,883.84 31,719 4.35 477
7 363,736,475.12 39,918 4.45 489
8 340,385,042.13 37,356 4.18 459
9 322,245,488.93 35,365 4.10 450
10 323,254,627.56 35,476 4.18 459
11 326,044,795.43 35,782 4.20 461
12 314,602,170.92 34,526 4.09 449
2019 1 288,740,379.41 31,688 4.21 462
2 275,126,149.63 30,194 4.05 444
3 267,175,220.86 29,321 3.95 434

ETFS
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1
11
2016 12 31| 35,778,460.88 3,927 - - 3.72 408
)
12
2017 12 31| 21,364,035.19 2,345 - - 3.27 359
)
13
2018 12 31| 21,096,421.62 2,315 3.05 335
)
2018 4 23,939,737.85 2,627 - - 3.59 394
5 23,683,330.93 2,599 - - 3.56 391
6 21,144,376.95 2,320 - - 3.14 344
7 22,724,196.89 2,494 - - 3.33 366
8 21,413,573.95 2,350 - - 3.13 343
9 21,069,429.48 2,312 - - 3.04 333
10 20,890,618.30 2,293 - - 3.03 333
11 21,442,029.68 2,353 - - 3.09 340
12 21,096,421.62 2,315 - - 3.05 335
2019 1 21,352,723.01 2,343 - - 3.11 341
2 20,199,443.30 2,217 - - 2.95 323
3 19,647,525.49 3,454 - - 2.87 407
ETFS ETFS WTI ETFS ETFS
ETFS ETFS ETFS ETFS
ETFS ETFS ETFS ETFS
ETFS ETFS 2006 9 27 2006 11
1 2007 2 15 NYSE 2006 12 15
2007 4 20 2010 3 19

2018 1 1 2018 12 31
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ETFS
2016 1 1 2016 12 31 1.30
2017 1 1 2017 12 31 32.19
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 1.30
100x (a b) b
a
b
ETFS WTI
2016 1 1 2016 12 31 5.99
2017 1 1 2017 12 31 3.89
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 21.40
ETFS
2016 1 1 2016 12 31 5.36
2017 1 1 2017 12 31 1.61
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 29.11
ETFS
2016 1 1 2016 12 31 8.62
2017 1 1 2017 12 31 29.67
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 17.89
ETFS
2016 1 1 2016 12 31 14.56
2017 1 1 2017 12 31 27.68
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 22.17
ETFS
2016 1 1 2016 12 31 10.71
2017 1 1 2017 12 31 2414
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 17.38
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ETFS

2016 1 1 2016 12 31 24.83

2017 1 1 2017 12 31 13.53

2018 1 1 2018 12 31 2.33
ETFS

2016 1 1 2016 12 31 10.67

2017 1 1 2017 12 31 13.09

2018 1 1 2018 12 31 5.70
ETFS

2016 1 1 2016 12 31 13.66

2017 1 1 2017 12 31 9.19

2018 1 1 2018 12 31 12.75
ETFS

2016 1 1 2016 12 31 10.11

2017 1 1 2017 12 31 1.51

2018 1 1 2018 12 31 12.76
ETFS

2016 1 1 2016 12 31 14.71

2017 1 1 2017 12 31 4.19

2018 1 1 2018 12 31 14.63
ETFS

2016 1 1 2016 12 31 18.77

2017 1 1 2017 12 31 27.86

2018 1 1 2018 12 31 20.40
ETFS

2016 1 1 2016 12 31 1.30
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2017 1 1 2017 12 31 11.84
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 11.88
ETFS

2016 1 1 2016 12 31 6.50
2017 1 1 2017 12 31 12.14
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 6.60

a.

CREST
1 30
b.

1974
the United States Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974
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1986

I1SA

ERISA
4975
29 2510.3-101
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1986 United States Internal Revenue Code of

qualified purchaser

3 ERISA 4 1 B

ERISA 3 42
ERISA
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1991 Companies Jersey Law 1991
2005 8 16
2006 9 15 2006 9 15
90959 2006 6 15

Steven Ross —

2001 2006
Cl LLP
2012 3 2017
1
Hilary Jones —
1993 15
Northern Bank 1999
R&H Fund Servies Jersey
Limited 2009 1993 1999

Lloyds Private Bank
and Trust Company
Barclays Private Bank and Trust Company
relationship manager
30
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REIT
R&H Fund Servies Jersey Limited
ManJer
2018 1
CEO
2008 1 2017 12 2011 3
2017 12 2007 4 2011 3
1991 2007
1982
N
()
1988
Collective Investment Funds (Jersey) Law 1947
Control of Borrowing (Jersey) Law 2

Jersey Financial Services Commission
15

Collective Investment Funds (Jersey) Law 1988 3
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3 3
50
1
8 1
8 B
certificate
8 2 1
7
8A
8A 2
8B
8B 7

@
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(b)
©
(d)
1991
1998
1996
) 8A
Q)
@ 13

8B 10
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8B 7
8B 13
9
9
4.
5.
6.
7.
8
9.
AlF
2012 —

Collective Investment Funds (Certified Funds — Prospectuses) (Jersey) Order 2012

1958 Control of Borrowing (Jersey) Order
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18
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1988

14 3 2

21
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30
RIS
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CME

2.5

MLI

(

20

)

14

)

2017 10 24
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)

2.5
60 2 RIS

2.5

10
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12 31
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14 3 2

21

@

(b)

©
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plc

21
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plc

10

14
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20 1 1

1.00 1

10 1
™I

(a

¢

10 1
™I
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ETFS Management Company (Jersey) Limited

2018 12 31 2,250,000 312,817,500

ETFS Foreign Exchange Limited
ETFS Industrial Metal Securities Limited
ETFS Metal Securities
Australia Limited
ETFS Commodity Securities Limited
ETFS Oil Securities Limited
Gold Bullion Securities Limited
ETFS Hedged Commodity Securities Limited
ETF Securities Limited

Q)

24
14
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24
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2018 12 31
300,000 100%
JE4 8PW
31
Peter Jiemba —
1 2
Craig Stewart —
2013 7
1987
1993 Arthur

Andersen 1997

1997

2000 4
Rowlonson & Hunter 2001
R&H Fund

Servies Jersey Limited 2003
25

2013 6

Hilary Jones —
1 2
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2019 3 31
1 2005 8 16 3,478,442,819
381,742
2
2 2012 12 6 121,064,351 13,286
3 2009 7 1 487,059,660 53,452
4 2011 11 11 146,083,808 16,032
5 2011 6 6 468,284,980 51,392
7 ETFS 2007 2 22 8,949,202,255
982,130
8 ETFS 2004 8 20 286,427,027 31,434
9 2004 3 17 3,282,842,180
360,276
10 2012 11 27 11,043,550 1,212

1 2019 3 31
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Trust Corporation p.l.c.

5,919,000 822,918,570

Services (Jersey) Limited

125,000 17,378,750
29
Computershare Investor Services (Jersey) Limited

25,000 3,475,750 2018 12 31

JE1 1ES

Trust Corporation p.l.c.

91/184

OOoooooooooooOooao
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100
R&H Fund
2018 12 31
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R&H Fund
Services (Jersey) Limited

Computershare Investor Services (Jersey) Limited
2012 12 14
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2015 2016
12 31 2015 2016 12 31

131
23 103

30 5 24
2018 5 23
109.745000 139.030000
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ETFS
12 31

2018 2017
3,286,424 360,669 1,891,450 207,577
3,091,983,052 339,329,680 3,530,411,481 387,445,008
11,959,380 1,312,482 29,819,343 3,272,524
13,874,417 1,522,648 10,655,830 1,169,424
3,121,103,273 342,525,479 3,572,778,104 392,094,533
3,121,116,614 342,526,943 3,506,478,237 384,818,454
11,959,380 1,312,482 29,819,343 3,272,524
13,874,417 1,522,648 10,655,830 1,169,424
3,286,422 360,668 1,891,448 207,577
3,150,236,833 345,722,741 3,548,844,858 389,467,979
2 0 2 0
(29,133,562) (3,197,263) 23,933,244 2,626,554
(29,133,560) (3,197,263) 23,933,246 2,626,554
3,121,103,273 342,525,479 3,572,778,104 392,094,533

13 29 2019 3 11

17

29
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12 31
2018 2017

3 22,128,939 2,428,540 22,352,813 2,453,109
3 (22,128,939) (2,428,540) (22,352,813) (2,453,109)
3 - - - -
7 (543,940,397) (59,694,739) 187,122,918 20,535,805
N 8 490,873,591 53,870,922 (158,203,363) (17,362,028)
8 (53,066,806) (5.823,817) 28,919,555 3,173,777
2 53,066,806 5,823,817 (28,919,555) (3,173,777)

20

29
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28,919,555

(28,919,555)

3,173,777

(3,173,777)

(53,066, 806)

53,066,806

(5,823,817)

5,823,817

(4,986,311) (547,223)
28,919,555 3,173,777
23,933,244 2,626,554
23,933,244 2,626,554

(53,066,806)  (5,823,817)

(4,986,309) (547,222) 2 0
28,919,555 3,173,777 28,919,555 3,173,777

- - (28,919,555) (3,173,777)
23,933,246 2,626,554 2 0
23,933,246 2,626,554 2 0
(53,066, 806) (5,823,817) (53,066,806) (5,823,817)

- - 53,066,806 5,823,817
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2018 12 31
2 0 - - (29,133,562) (3,197,263) (29,133,560) (3.,197,263) 2 0

20

17 29
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12 31
2018 2017
(1,394,974) (153,091) 46,808 5,137
) 1,394,974 153,091 (46,808) (5,137)

29
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ETFS
1
ETFS
Ordnance House, 31 Pier Road, St. Helier, Jersey JE4 8PW
12
Q
Q
ETFS ManJder
) ManJer
ManJer
ManJer
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1ASB IFRS
1ASB

ManJer

2018 4 11
ETFS ETF

IFRS
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(a

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

IAS 39
IFRS 9

IFRS

IFRS 16 2019 1 1
IFRS 17 (021 1 1 )

1AS 28 (2019 1 1 )
IFRS

UBS AG UBS
MLCI
UBS MLCI
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2017 10 24

L.P. L.P.

IFRS 13

iii)
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IFRS 8
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3.
12 31
2018 2017
19,677,422 2,159,499 20,172,029 2,213,779
1,796,708 197,180 1,809,465 198,580
654,809 71,862 371,319 40,750
22,128,939 2,428,540 22,352,813 2,453,109
ManJer (22,128,939) (2,428,540) (22,352,813) (2,453,109)
(22,128,939) (2,428,540) (22,352,813) (2,453,109)
24,450 2017 23,000 ManJer
4.
2017
5.
2
2018 12 31
15,379,915 4,297,507 19,677,422
1,577,447 219,261 1,796,708
339,973 324,836 654,809
17,297,335 4,841,604 22,138,939
(17,297,335) (4,841,604) (22,138,939)
2018 12 31
1,687,869 471,630 2,159,499
173,117 24,063 197,180
37,310 35,649 71,862
1,898,296 531,342 2,429,638
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(1,898,296) (531,342) (2,429,638)
2017 12 31
15,293,481 4,878,548 20,172,029
1,560,559 248,906 1,809,465
186,479 184,875 371,354
17,040,519 5,312,329 22,352,848
(17,040,519) (5.312,329) (22,352,848)
2017 12 31
1,678,383 535,396 2,213,779
171,264 27,316 198,580
20,465 20,289 40,754
1,870,112 583,002 2,453,113
(1,870,112) (583,002) (2,453,113)
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6.
12 31
2018 2017
3,011,359 330,482 1,683,078 184,709
275,063 30,187 208,370 22,868
2 0 2 0
3,286,424 360,669 1,891,450 207,577
7.
2018 12 31
(494,149,012) (54,230,383)  2,735,862,976 300,247,282
(49,791, 385) (5,464,356) 356,120,076 39,082,398
(543,940, 397) (59,694,739)  3,091,983,052 339,329, 680
2017 12 31
193,069, 698 21,188,434  3,008,284,802 330,144,216
(5,946,780) (652,629) 522,126,679 57,300,792
187,122,918 20,535,805  3,530,411,481 387,445,008
2018 12 31
11,959,380 2017
29,819,343
13,874,417 2017
10,655,830
8.
NAV

IFRS 13
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)

449,891,837 49,373,380 2,761,492,515 303,059,996
40,981,754 4,497,543 359,624,100 39,466,947
490,873,591 53,870,922 3,121,166,614 342,532,430
494,149,012 54,230,383 2,735,862,976 300,247,282
49,791,385 5,464,356 356,120,076 39,082,398

543,940,397

59,694,739 3,091,983,052 339,329,680
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12 31
2018 2017
y (543,940, 397) (59,694,739) 187,122,918 20,535,805
490,873,501 53,870,922 (158,203,363) (17,362,028)
(53,066,806) (5,823,817) 28,919,555 3,173,777
13,874,417 2017  :10,655,830
11,959,380 2017  :29,819,343
(171,682, 256) (18,841,269)  2,989,657,166 328,099,926
13,478,893 1,479,241 516,821,071 56,718,528
(158, 203,363) (17,362,028)  3,506,478,237 384,818,454
(193,069, 698) (21,188,434)  3,008,284,802 330,144,216
5,946,780 652,629 522,126,679 57,300,792
(187,122,918) (20,535,805)  3,530,411,481 387,445,008
12 31
2018 2017
3,286,422 360,668 1,801,448 207,577
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10.
12 31
2018 2017
! 2 0 2 0
2
1 1
ETFS HoldCo )
2018 4 11
ETFS ETF
HoldCo
11.
ManJer
12 31

2018 2017

ManJer 22,128,939 2,428,540 22,352,813 2,453,109
ManJer
12 31

2018 2017

ManJer 3,286,424 360,669 1,891,450 207,577
2018 12 31 2 2017 2 ManJer
ManJer 9,315 2017 : 8,000
( R&H R&H
ManJer 2018 4 11 ETFS
ETF

2018 4 11 R&H 2018 11 2 R&H
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321,121 2017 300,984 ManJer 83,250

2017 70,750
ETFS ETF

2018 4 11 ManJer HoldCo ManJer
HoldCo 2018 4 11
12.
(a
b
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ManJer
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8
8
ii
iii
(]
1
2 1
3
/
1
NAV
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12 31

2018 2017

(3,121,166,614)  (342,532,430) (3.506,478,237) (384,818,454)

HoldCo

3,091,983,052 339,329,680 3,530,411,481 387,445,008
HoldCo 2018 4 11 HoldCo
2018 4 11
ETF

2018 12 31
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Currant Assels

Trade and Cther Receivables

Commodity Contracts

Amounts Receivable on Commodity Contracts
Awaiting Settlernent

Amounts Receivable on Commodity Securities
Awailing Settlem ant

Total Assets
Current Liabilities

Commodity Secunties

Amounts Payable on Commaodity Securities
Awaiting Settlern ent

Amounts Payable on Commodity Contracts
Awaiting Settlernent

Trade and Other Payables

Total Liabilities
Equity

Stated Capital
Revaluation Resenve

Total Equity

Total Equity and Liabilities

As at 31 December

2018 2017

Motes uUsD uso
G 3,286.424 1,891,450
7 3,091 983 052 35530411,481
7 11,959,380 29,819,343
8 13,874,417 103,655,830
3121,103,273 3,572,778,104

8 3121116614 3,506 478,237
8 11,959,380 29 819 343
7 13,874,417 10,655,830
1] 3,288 422 1,891,448
3,150,236,833 3,548,844, 858

10 2 2
(20,133,562) 23,933,244

(29,133,560) 23,933,246
3,121,103,273 3572, 778,104

The financial statements on pages 13 to 20 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

and signed on its behalf on 11 March 2019,

~Xgel—

Steven Ross
Director

The notes on pages 17 to 29 form part of these financial statements
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 December

2018 2017

MNotes ush usD
Revenue 3 22,128,938 22352813
Expenses 23 (22,128,939) (22.352,813)
Operating Result 3 - -
Met (losspGain Arising on Contractual and Fair
Value of Commaodity Contracks 7 (243,840,397) 187,122,918
Met Gainf{Loss)h Arising on Fair Value of
Commodity Securities 8 490,873,501 (158, 203,363)
Result and Total Comprehensive Income for
the Year 8 (93,066,806) 28,918,555
! Adjustment from Market Value to Contractual
Value (as set out in the Prospectus) of Commoedity
Securities 2 53,068,806 [28,919,555)

Adjusted Result and Total Comprehensive
Income for the Year

The directors consider the Company's activities as continuing.

' An explanation of the non-statutory adiustrment is set out on page 20. This represents the movernent in the dfference
betweean the Contractual WValue of the Commodity Contracts and the market price of Commodity Securities.

The notes on pages 17 to 28 form part of these financial statements

B | 2 www.wisdomiree.eu
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ETFS Commaodity Securities Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December

2018 2047
uspo usD
Operating Result for the Year - -
Changes in Operating Assels and Liabilties
{Increase)Decrease in Receivables (1,354.874) 45,808
Increasel{Decrease) in Payables 1,394 974 (46,808)

Cash Generated from Operating Activities - -

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents - -

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the
Year - S

Met increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents - -

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year - -

Commeodity Secunties are issued through a receipt of cash directly with the Commodity Contract
Counterparties or redeemed by the transfer of cash directly by the Coammoadity Contract Counterparties. Cash
flows in respect of the issue and redemption of Commodity Securities and the creation and cancellation of
Commodity Contract have been netted off in the Statement of Cash Flows.

The notes on pages 17 to 28 form part of these financial statements

www. wisdomtree.eu
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ETFS Commodity Securities Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

Stated Rataired Revaluation T
Capital Earnings Resarves Eq
Notes Ush uso UsD L
Opening Balance at 1 January 2017 2 = {4,986,311) (4,986,
Result and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year = 28919.555 - 28,918,
Transfer to Revaluation Reserve 2 - {28.818,555) 28,919,555
3 Adjustment from Market Value to Contractual Value
{as set out in the Prospectus) of Commaodity Securities -] - - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 2 - 23,833,244 23.933.'
Opening Balance at 1 January 2018 2 - 23933244 23,833,
Resut and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - 153,088 808) B (53,066,
Transfer to Revaluation Reserve 8 - 53,066,806 (53,066,806)
¥ Adjustment from Market Value to Contractual Value
(as set out in the Prospectus) of Commadity Securities 8 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 2 - (29,133,562) (28,133,5

< This represents the difference bebween the Contractual Value of the Commadity Contracts and the market price of Commadity Securities,
* An explanation of the non-statutory adjustrnent s et oul on page 20.

The notes on pages 17 to 28 form part of these financial statements
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ETFS Commodity Securities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
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1. General Information

ETFS Commodity Securities Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated in Jersey. The address of
the registered office is Ordnance House, 31 Pier Road, St. Helier, Jersey, JE4 BPW.

The purpose of the Company is to provide a wehicle that permits trading of Commodity Securities, The
Company does not make gains from trading in the underying Commodity Contracts themselves, The
Commodity Securities are issued under limited recourse arrangements whereby the Company has no residual
exposure to price movements of the underlying assets, therefore from a commerdal perspective gains and
losses in respect of Commodity Contracts will always be offset by a corresponding loss or gain on the
Commodity Securities. Further details regarding the risks of the Company are disclosed in nate 12.

Exchange-traded products are not typically actively managed, are significantly lower in cost when compared
to actively managed mutual funds and are easily accessible to investors. Mo trading o management of fulures
contracts is required of the Company because the Company has entered into arrangements to acquire an
equivalent assel exposure to the underlying assets from third parties which fully hedges the exposure of the
Company.

The Company is entitled to:
(1) a management fee and a icence allowance which are caleulated by applving a fixed percentage to
the contractual value of Commodity Securities in issue on a daily basis, and
{2} creation and redemption fees on the issue and redemption of the Commodity Securities.

Mo creation or redemption fees are payable to the Company when investors trade in the Commodity Securities
on a listed market such as the London Stock Exchange. Creation and redemplion fees may also be waived
with certain approved persons where applicable,

The Company has entered into a serdce agreement with ETFS Management Company (Jersey) Limited
("ManJer” or the *Manager), whereby ManJer iz responsible for supplying or procuring the supply of all
management and administration services required by the Company (including marketing), as well as the
payment of costs relating to the listing and issuance of Commaodity Securities. In return for these sendces the
Company pays ManJder an amount egual to the management fee. licence allowance and the creation and
redemplion fees eamed (the “ManJder Fee”). As a resull there are no operating profits or losses recognised
through the Company,

2. Accounting Policies
The main accounting policies of the Company are described below.
Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards
{"IFRSs") as issued by the Internaticnal Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), and interpretations issued by
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committes of the IASB. The financdial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and
financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss.

Going Concern

The nature of the Company's business dictates thal the cutstanding Commodity Securities may be redeemed
at any time by the holder and in cerfain circumstances may be compulsonly redeemed by the Company.
Generally only security holders who have entered into an authorised participant agreement with the Company
{“Authorised Participant™) can submit applications and redemptions directly with the Company. As the
redemption of Commodity Securiies will always coincide with the cancellation of an egual ameount of
Commodity Contracts, no net liquidity risk is considerad to arise. All other expenses of the Company are met
by ManJer; therefore the directors consider the Company to be a going concern for the foreseeable future and
have prapared the financial statements on this basis.

AT - www.wisdomtree.eu
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ETFS Commaodity Securities Limited

Hotes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Eecurriian
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2. Accounting Policies (continued)

Going Concern (continuad)

On 11 April 2018 WisdomTree Investments, Inc (an exchange-traded product sponsor and asset manager)
acquired ETFS Capital Limited's (formerly ETF Securities Limited) European exchange-traded product
business as a going concem, which includes the Company. Following completion of the acquisition, the
Company continues as a geing concem.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The presentation of financial gatem ents in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certaln erilical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities.
Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances. The only key
accounting judgement required to prepare these financial statements is in respect of the valuation of
Commedity Contracts and Commodity Secwrities held at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in notes
Tand 8, Actual results could vary from these estimates.

Accounting Standards
{a) Standards, amendmemis and Imerpretations adopted in the year:

In preparing the financial statements the Company has adopted all new o revised Standards and
Interpretations, including:

+ |FRS 9 Financial Instruments
+« |FRS 15 Revenues

Under |45 38 Commodity Securities and Commodity Contracts were designated as financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables were measured at am orlised cost. Following
the adaption of IFRS 8 there has been no change in the classification or measurement of any financial
assets or liabilties held by the Company.

Of those Standards and Interpretations adopted in the current year, none have resulted in any significant
effect on these financial statements,

The Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective;

+ |FRS 16 Leases (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019)

# |FRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021)

« IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Venlures (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019)

+ Annual Improvements to IFRS

The directors do not expect the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations that
are in Issue but not yet effective will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company
in future periods.,

The directors have considered other standards and interpretations in issue but not effective and concluded
that they would not have a material impact on the future financial periods when they become available.

T www.wisdomtree.eu
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ETFS Commaodity Securities Limited

Hotes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continued)
Commaodity Securities and Commodity Contracts
i} lzzue and Redemplion

The Company has entered into facilty agreements with Citigroup Global Markets Limited (“Citigroup”) and
Merrill Lynch International (*Merrill Lynch”) (collectively the "Commuodity Contract Counterparties™). The facility
agreements permit the Company to create and cancel Comm odity Contracts at prices equivalent to Commedity
Securities issued or redeemed on the same day. Each timea a Commodity Security is issued or redeemed by
the Company a comesponding number and value of Commodity Contracts are created or cancelled with the
Commodity Contract Counterparties.

Financial aszets and liabikties are recognised and de-recognised on the transaction date.

UBS Securities AG, London Branch (“"UBS") and Mermill Lynch Commedities, Inc {"MLCI") were commaodity
contract counterparties and had entered into agreements with the Company on similar terms to the current
facility agreem ents with the existing Commedity Contract Counterparties. The facility agreements with UBS
and MLCI were terminated on 24 October 2017 and the Commadity Contracts cutstanding thereunder were
replaced by equivalent Commodity Contracts with Merrill Lynch and Citigroup, respectively.

i} Pricing

The Commaodity Contracts are priced by reference to the value of the commaodity indices calculated and
published by Bloomberg L_P. or Bloomberg Finance L P. (together “Blocmberg”) and a multiplier caleulated by
the Company and agreed with the Commaodity Contract Counterparties. The multiplier takes info account the
daily accrual of the management fee and licence allowance and swap spread as well as the capital adjustment
component of the Commodity Security, and is the same across all Commodity Securities of the same type (e,
all Classic Commeodity Securties wse the same multiplier). This price is calculated based on the formula set
out in the Prospectus, and is referred to as the 'Contractual Value' and is considered to be the fair value of the
Commeodity Transactions.

IFRS 13 requires the Company to identify the principal market and to utilise the available market price within
that principal market. The directors consider that the stock exchanges where the Commodity Securties are
listed to be the principal market and as a result the fair value of the Commodity Securities is the on-exchange
price as quoted on those stock exchanges demonstrating active trading. The Commeodity Securities are priced
using the closing mid-market price on the Statement of Financial Position date.

Consequently a difference arises between the value of Commedity Contracts (at Contractual Value) and
Commodity Securities (at market value) presented in the Statement of Financial Position. This difference is

reversed on a subsequent redemption of the Commodity Securities and cancellation of the corresponding
Commodity Contracts.
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2. Accounting Policies (continued)
Commodity Securities and Commodity Contracts (continued)
iy Dezignation at fair value through Profit or Loss

Each Commadity Security and Commadity Confract comprises a financlal instrument whose redemption or
cancellation price s linked to the performance of the relevant commodity index adjusted by the applicable fees
and expenses.

These instruments are designated at fair value through profit or less upon initial recognition. This is in order
to enable gains or lesses on bath the Commadity Securities and Commadity Contracts to be recorded in the
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Through the mis-matched accounting values, the results ofthe Company reflect a gain or loss which represents
the movermnent in the cumulative difference between the Contractual Value (based on the formula set out in the
Prospectus) of the Commodity Contracts and the market price of Commodity Securities, This gain or loss is
transferred to a Revaluation Reserve which is non-distributable. The results of the Company are adjusted
through the presentation of a non-statutory movement entitled “Adjustment from Market Value to Contractual
Value (as set out in the Prospectus) of Commodity Securities'.

Commeaodity Contracts and Securities Awaiting Settlement

The issue or redemption of Commeodity Securities, and the creation or cancellation of Commodity Contracts,
is accounted for on the transaction date. Where settlement pricing is applied. the transaction will not settle
until two days after the transaction date. Where transactions are awaiting settlement at the year end, the
monetary value of the Commeodity Contracts and the Commodity Securities due to be settled is separately
disclosed within the relevant assets and liabilities on the Statement of Finandal Position.

Revenue Recognition

Rewvenue is recognisad to the extent that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can
be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, exduding
discounts, rebates, and other sales taxes or duty.

Fees received for the issue and redemplion of Commodity Securities are recognised at the date on which the
transaction becomes legally binding. All other income and expenses are recognised on an accruals basis.

Loans and Receivables

The leans and receivables are non-denivative financial assets with a foced payment amount and are not quoted
iman active market. After initial measurement the loans and receivables are caried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any allowance for expected credit losses. The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised cost of an instrument and of allocating interest over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amounkt on initial recognition. Impairment losses, including reversals of impairment losses and
impairment gains, are presented in the statemant of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2. Accounting Policies (continued)
Foraign Currency Translation

The financial statements of the Company are presented in the currency of the prim ary economie emviranmeant
in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the financial statements, the results and
financial position of the Company are expressed in United States Dollars, which is the functional currency of
the Company, and the presentational currency of the financial statements.

Menetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year end date are translated at rates
ruling at that date. Creation and redemption fees are translated at the average rate for the month in which
they are incurred, The resulting differences are accounted far through profit or loss,

Segmental Reporting

IFRS 8 requires operaling segments to be identified on the basis of intermal reports about components of the
Company that are regulady reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM”) in order to allocate
resources to the segments and to assess their performance. The CODM has been determined as the board
of directors, A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing
preducts or services (business segment), or in providing products and senvces within a particular economic
emdronment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of
other segments.

The Company reports information on its operations for each of the Company's business segments enly, as the
Company enly has one gecgraphic segment which is Eurcpe. In addition the Company has no single major
customer from which greater than 10% of revenue is generated. The directors believe that there are two
segments comprising Classic & Longer Dated and Short & Leveraged — results of each are disclosed
separately in note 5,

3. Operating Result

Operating result for the year comprised.

Year ended 31 December

2018 2047

UsD Uso
Managemeni Fees 19,677 422 20,172,029
Licence Allowance 1,796,708 1,809 465
Creation and Redemption Fees 654,809 Im.me
Total Revenue 22 128,030 22,352,813
ManJer Fees (22128.939) {22,352,813)
Total Operating Expenses {22,128,939) {22,352,813)

Operating Result - -

Audit Fees for the year of GBP 24,450 will be met by ManJer (2017: GBP 23,000).
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4. Taxation

The Company is subject to Jersey Income Tax. During the year the Jersey Income Tax rate applicable to the
Company is zero percent (2017 zero percent).

5. Segmental Reporting

The Company has two operating segments; Classic & Longer Dated and Short & Leveraged Commodity
Securities in issue, The Company earns revenues from each of these sources,

For the year ended Classic & Short &
31 December 2018: Longer Dated Leveraged Total
ush usp uso
Management Fees 15379915 4,267 507 19,677 422
Licence Allowance 1.577 447 219,261 1,796,705
Cregtion and Redemplion Fees 330973 324,836 554,809
Total Revenue 17,297 335 4,841,604 22,138.939
Total Operating Expenses (17,287 .335) (4,841,604) (22,138.835)

Segmental Result - - -

For the year ended Classic & Short &
31 December 2017: Longer Dated Leveraged Total
uso uso uso
Management Fees 15,293 481 4,878,548 20,172,028
Licence Allowance 1,560,559 248 906 1,800,465
Creation and Redemplion Fees 186 479 184,875 371,354
Total Revenue 17,040 519 5,312,329 22,352 848
Taotal Operating Expenses (17.040,519) (5.312,329) (22,352 .848)

Segmental Result - - -

Additional information relating to the assets and liabilties associated with these Commodity Securities is
disclosed in notes 7 and 8.

6. Trade and Other Receivables

Az at 31 December

2018 2017
usp uso
Management Fees and Licence Allowance 3011359 1,683.078
Creation and Redemption Fees 275,063 208,370
Receivable from Related Party 2 2
3,286,424 1,881,450

The fair value of these receivables is equal to the carrying value.
23 - www.wisdomtree.eu
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¥.  Commodity Contracts

31 December 2018 Change in
Fair Value Fair Value
usp uso
Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Contracts (494, 148 012) 27358628976
Short & Leveraged Commodity Contracts (49.791.385) 356120076
Total Commedity Contracts (543,940,397) 3,091,983,052
31 December 2017 Change in
Fair Value Fair Value
usD usD
Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Contracts 163,065 658 3008 284 802
Short & Leveraged Commodity Contracts {2,946,780) 522126679
Total Commeodity Contracts 187,122,918 353041143

As at 31 December 2018, there were certain Commodity Contracts awailing settlement in respedt of the
creation or redemption of Securities with transaction dates before the year end and seftiement dates in the
following year:
= The amount receivable on Commodity Contracts as a resuilt of unseftled redemptions of Commodity
Securities is USD 11,856 380 (2017 USD 29,5819.343),
= The amount payable on Commodity Contraclts as a result of unsettled creations of Commaodity
Securities is USD 13,874,417 (2017 LISD 10,655,830).

8. Cammaodity Securities

Whilst the Commaodity Securities are quoted on the open market, the Company's liability relates to its
contractual obligations to issue and redeem Commodity Securities at set prices on each frading day. These
prices are based on agreed formulae, and are equal to the published net asset values ("MAV™) of each class
of Commodity Security. Therefore, the actual contractual issue and redem ption of Commaodity Securities oceur
at a price that comesponds to gains or losses on the Commodity Contracts. As a result the Company has no
net exposure to gains or losses on the Commadity Securities and Commadity Confracts,

The Company measures the Commadity Securities at thelr market value in accordance with IFRS 13 rather
than their Contractual Value (as described in the Prospectus), The market value is deemed to be the prices
quoted on stock exchanges or other markets where the Commeodity Securities are listed or traded. However
Commodity Contracts are valued based on the agreed formulae set out in the Prospecdtus,

The fair values and changes thereof during the year based on prices awvailable on the open market as
recognised in the finandial statements are:

31 December 2018 Change in
Fair Value Fair Value
usD usD
Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Securities 449891837 2.761,492 515
Short & Leveraged Commodity Securities 40,981,754 350,624 100
Total Commodity Securities 490,873,591 3121,166,614
L e www.wisdomtree.eu
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8. Commodity Securities (continued)

The contractual redemption values and changes thereof during the year based on the contractual settlement
values are;

31 December 2018 Change in
Contractual Bmtr&c’l{.ﬂl
Redemption Redemption
Value Value
usD usp
Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Securities 454,149,012 2735862975
Short & Leveraged Commodity Securities 49,791,385 356,120,075
Total Commaodity Securities 543,940,397 3,091,883,052

The gain or loss on the difference between the agreed Contractual Value of the Commodity Contracts and the
market price of Commodity Securities would be reversed on a subsequent redemption of the Commodity
Securities and cancellation of the comresponding Commodity Contracts,

The mismatched accounting values are as shown below and represent the non-statutory adjustm ent presented
in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income:

Year ended 31 December

2018 2017
uso uso
Met (Loss) [ Gain Arising on Contractual and Fair Value of
Commodity Contracts (543,040 387) 187,122,918
Met Gains / (Loss) Arising on Fair Value of Commodity
Securities 480,873,581 (158,203 ,363)
(53,0686,808) 28,919,555

As at 31 December 2018, there were certain Commodity Securities awaiting settlement in respect of creations
or redemptions with transaction dates before the year end and seltlement dates in the following year:
& The amount receivable as a result of unsettled creations of Commodity Secunties is USD 13,874,417
(2017 USD 10,655 830).
= Theamount payable as a result of unsettled redemptions of Commodity Securities s USD 11 959 380
(2017: USD 29,819,343),

3 December 2017 Change in
Fair Value Fair Value
usD uso
Classic & Longer Dated Commadity Securities {171,682 .256) 2989 6857 166
Short & Leveraged Commodity Securities 13,478,893 516,821,071
Total Commodity Securities (158,203,363) 3,506,478,237
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8. Commodity Securities (continued)

31 Decamber 2017 Change in
Contractual Contractual
Redemption Redemption
Value Value
usD uso
Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Securities {163,069,608) 3,008,284.802
Short & Leveraged Commodity Securities 55845780 522 126,679
Total Commaodity Securities (187,122,918) 3,530,411,481

9. Trade and Other Payables

Az at 31 December

2018 2017
usp uso
Man.Jer Fees Payable 3,286 422 1,891,448

The fair value of these payables is equal to the carrying value.

10. Stated Capital

Az at 31 December

2018 2017
usD uso
2 Ehares of Nil Par Value, Issued at GEP 1 Each 2 2

The Company can issue an unlimited capital of nil par value shares in accordance with its Memorandum of
Association.

All Shares issuad by the Company carry ona vote per Share without restricion and carry the right to drnidends.,
All Shares are held by ETFS Holdings (Jersey) Limited ("HoldCo®). ETFS Capital Limited (formerly ETF
Securities Limited) was the parent company of HaldCo until complation of the acquisition by WisdomTres
Investments, Inc ("VVisdomTree™) on 11 April 2018, on which date, WisdomTree became the ultimate parent,
11. Related Party Disclosures

Entities and individuals which have a significant influence over the Company, either through the ownership or
by virtue of being a director of the Company, are related parties.

Feas charged by Mander durning the yaar:

Year ended 31 December

2018 2047

uspo usD

MarnJer Fees 22,128,939 22352813
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11. Related Party Disclosures (continued)
The following balznces were due to Manler at year end.

Az at 31 December

2018 2017
usp uspo
ManJer Fees Payable 3,286424 1,891,450

At 31 December 2018, USD 2 is recaivable from ManJer (2017, USD 2) in relation {0 unpaid share capital,

As disclosed in the Directors’ Report, ManJer paid Directors’ Fees in respect of the Company of GBP 8,315
(2017 GEP 8,000).

Steven Ross and Hilary Jones are directors of R&H Fund Services (Jersey) Limited ("RE&H" or the
“Administratar”) and Steven Ross is a partner of Rawlinson & Hunter, Jersey Partnership, which wholly owns
R&H. Christopher Foulds was the Compliance Officer of Mander, and was an employee of ETFS Capital
Limited (formerly ETF Securities Limited) until 11 April 2018, On 11 April 2018 Christopher Foulds jcined REH
and he resigned on 2 November 2018. During the year, R&H charged ManJer administration fees in respect
of the Company of GEP 321,121 (2017: GBP 300 584), of which GBP 83,250 (2017 GBP 70,750) was
outstanding at the year end,

Gregory Barton and Peler Ziemba are executive officers of WisdomTree Investments, inc.

Graham Tuckwell is a director of ETFS Capital Limited (formerly ETF Securities Limited) and was a director of
Mander and HoldCo until 11 April 2018, Joseph Roxburgh was a director of ManJer and HoldCo and the
Company Secretary of the Company until 11 April 2018,

12,  Financial Risk Management

The Commodity Securities are subject to normal market fluctuations and other risks inherent in investing in
securities and other financial instruments. There can be no assurance that any appreciation in the value of
securities will oocur, and the capital value of an investor's original investment is not guaranteed. The value of
imsestments may go down as well as up, and an investor may not get back the original amount invested,

The Company is expoesed to a number of risks arising from its activities. The information provided below is not
intended to be a comprehensive summary of all the risks associated with the Commodity Securities and
imvestors should refer to the most recent Prospecius for a detailed summary of the risks inherent in investing
in the Commodity Securities. Any data provided should not be used or interpreted as a basis for future forecast
or investment performance.

The risk management policies employed by the Company to manage these are discussed below.
(&) Credi Risk

Credit risk primarily refers to the risk that Authorised Participants or the Commodity Contract Counterparty will
default on its contractual cbligations resulting in financial loss.

The value of Commodity Securities and the ability of the Company fo repay the redemplion price is dependent
on the receipt of such amount from the Commodity Contract Counterparties and may be affected by the credit
rating attached to each Commodity Contract Counterparty.

To cover the credit sk under the Commodity Contracts, the Commaodity Contract Counterparties are obliged
to place an equivalent amount of collateral into a pledge account with the Bank of New York Mellon based on
the total sutstanding value of the Commadity Contracts at the end of the previous trading day. In the event of
default by a Commodity Contract Counterparty, the Company has rights which it can exercise overthe amounts
placed in this pledge account.
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12 Financial Risk Management (continued)

{B) Credi Risk — cortinued

The Board moniftors credit risk exposire in o ensure the Company's axposure s managed.
fe)  Liguicity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities as they fall due,

Generally, there is no liquidity risk to the Company because the maturity profiles of the Commodity Securities
and Commodity Contracts are matched, therefore the Company does not have to wait for a longer-term
contract to mature in ofder to pay s debls to ex-security holders. Furthermore, while the agreements with the
Commodity Contract Counterparties indude limits (both daily and in the aggregate) on the issue and
cancelation of Commeodity Contracts, the Company is not obliged to issue and redeem Commeodity Securities
in excess of those imits under the terms of the security agreement,

id) Settlemert Risk

Settlement risk primarily refers to the risk that an Authorised Participant or the Commodity Contract
Counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss.

The directors believe that setflement risk would only be causad by the risk of the Company's trading
counterparty not delivering cash, Comm odity Contracts or Commodity Securities on the settlement date. The
directors feel that this risk is mitigated as a result of the cash or Commodity Securities settling through the
CREST system. The system ensures that the transaction does not seitle until both parties have fulfilled their
contractual cbligations.

Amounts outstanding in respect of positions yet to settle are disclosed in notes 7 and 8.

{e) Capial Management

The Company's principal actity is the issue and listing of Commodity Secunities. These Commodity Securities
are issued and redeemed as demand requires. The Company holds a corresponding number of Commodity
Contracts which matches the total liability of the Commodity Securities issued. ManJer supplies or arranges
for the supply of all management and administration services to the Company and pays all management and
administration costs of the Company, In return for these services the Company pays ManJder a fee, which
under the terms of the senvice agreement is equal to the aggregate of the management fee, licence allowance
and ereation and redemption fees earmned. The Company is not subject to any capital requirements imposed
by a regulater and there were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year.

As all Commodity Securities in issue are supported by an equivalent number of Commodity Contracts held
with the Commodity Contract Counterparties and the running costs of the Company are paid by MandJer, the
directors of the Company consider the capital management and #ts current capital resources are adequate to
maintain the ongeing listing and issue of Commodity Securities.

ifl  Sensitivity Analysis

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of a sensitivity analysis for each type of market risk to which the Company is
exposed o at the reporting date, showing how profit or loss and equity would have been affected by a
reasonably possible change to the relevant nsk vanable,

The Company's rights and liability in respect of Commodity Contracts and Commodity Securnties, respectively,
relates to its contractual obligations to issue and redeem Commodity Securities at set prices on each trading
day. As aresult the Company's contractual and economic liability in connection with the issue and redem ption
of Commodity Securities is matched by movements in comesponding Commedity Contracts. Consequently,
the Company does not have any net exposure to market price risk. Therefore, in the directors” opinion, no
sensitivity analysis is required to be disclosed.
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12 Financial Risk Management (continued)
fg) Markel Risk

Market risk i the risk that changes in market prices (such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and aquity
prices) will affect the Company's income or the value of its financial instruments held or issued,

il Price Rizk

The value of the Company's liability in respect of the Commodity Securities fluctuates according to the
performance of the underlying commuodity index and the nisk of such change in price is managed by the
Company by entering into Comm odity Contracts with the Commedity Confract Counterparties which match
the liability. The Company therefore bears no financial risk from a change in the price of a comm odity,
commodity index or currency by reference to the fulures price. Refer to nole & for the further details
regarding fair values.

Herwewver there is an inherent risk from the point of view of investors as the price of commedities, and thus
the value of the Commodity Securities, may vary widely due to, amongst other things, changing supply or
demand, government and monetary policy or intervention and global or regional peolitical, economic or
financial events,

The market price of Commodity Securities is a function of supply and demand amongst investars wishing
to buy and sell Commodity Securities and the bid-offer spread that the market makers are willing to quote.
This is highlighted in note 8, and below under the Fair Value Hierarchy.

i) Irterest Rate Risk

The multiplier used in the pricing of the Commodity Contracts or the Commodity Securities takes into
account the incremental capital enhancement compenent of the Commeadity Security, which includes the
impact of interest rates. As a result the Company does not have significant exposure to interest rate risk,

i) Currency Risk

The directors do not consider the Company to have a significant exposure to cumency risk arising from the
current economic uncertainties facing a number of countries around the world as the gains or losses on
the Rability represented by the Commodity Securities are matched economically by corresponding losses
or gains aftributable to the Commodity Contracts.

i) Fair Value Hisrarchy

The levels in the hierarchy are defined as follows:

e Level 1 fair value based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

s Level 2 fair values based on valuation techniques using cbsenable inputs other than quoted prices
within lewvel 1.

+ Level 3 fair values based on valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on obsenable
market data.

Categorisation within the hierarchy is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement of each relevant assetliability.

The Company is required to utilise the availlable market price as the Commodity Securities are quoted and
actively traded on the open market. Therefore Commodity Securities are classified as level 1 financial liabilities.

The Company’s rights in respect of Commeodity Contracts relate to its contractual obligations to issue and
redeem Commodity Securities at set prices on each trading day. These prices are based on an agreed formula
(set out in the Prospectus), and are equal to the published NAV's of each class of Commodity Securnty.
Therafore, Commadity Contracts are dassified as level 2 financial assets, as the value is caleulated using third
party pricing sources supporied by observable, venfiable inputs.
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12 Financial Risk Management (continued)
{gl  Fair Value Hierarchy {continusd)
The categonization of the Company's assets and (Habllities) are as shown below!

Fair Value as at 31 December

2018 2017
usD usp
Lewvel 1
Commaodity Securities (3,121,166,614) (3,506,478,237)
Level 2
Commodity Contracts 3,001,983,052 3,530,411,481

The Commuodity Securities and the Commuodity Contracts are recognised at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition in ine with the Company's aceounting pelicy. There are no assets or liabilities classified
in level 3, There were no reclassifications during the year,

13 Ulimate Controlling Party

The immediate parent company is HoldCo, a Jersey registered company. Following completion of the
acquisition which included HoldCao on 11 April 2018 the ultimate controlling party is WisdomTree Investments,
Ine. Prior to 11 April 2018 Graham Tuckwell was the ullimate controlling party of HoldCo through his majority
shareholding in ETFS Capttal Limited (formerly ETF Secunfies Limited).

The value of the Commodity Contracts backing the Commodity Securities is wholly attributable to the holders
of the Commodity Securities.

14. Events QOccurring After the Reporting Period

Mo significant events have occurmed since the end of the reporting pericd up to the date of signing the Financial
Statements which would impact on the financial position of the Company disclosed in the Statement of

Financial Position as at 31 December 2018 or on the results and cash flows of the Company for the year ended
on that date.,
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24,501,360 85,360,811 9,367,922.18 (14,321,891)  (1,571,756) 71,038,920  7,796,166.25
10,468,714 287,572,295 31,559,621.51 (45,798,322)  (5,026,137) 241,773,973 26,533,484.68
6,621,474 97,646,675 10,716,234.33 1,039,796 114,112 98,686,471  10,830,346.76
208,909 1,334,892 146,497.68 99,608 10,931 1,434,500 157,429.18
17,085,662 43,423,532 4,765,515.52 (493,754) (54,187) 42,929,778 4,711,328.46
91,096,395 88,613,442 9,724,882.15 (12,327,034)  (1,352,830) 76,286,408  8,372,051.81
6,927,911 193,342,620 21,218,385.84  (25,095,318)  (2,754,086) 168,247,302 18,464,300.21
38,418,172 31,575,829 3,465,289.37 (951,682) (104,442) 30,624,147  3,360,846.99
1,827,828 4,668,739 512,370.75 (461,757) (50,676) 4,206,982 461,695.23
72,797,244 745,223,596 81,784,563.59  (252,284,717)  (27,686,986) 492,938,879  54,097,577.33
194,169 2,890,036 317,166.99 (912,489) (100,141) 1,977,547 217,025.89
4,685,184 2,748,850 301,672.53 (41,006) (4,500) 2,707,844 297,172.32
29,155 752,790 82,614.89 (225,725) (24,772) 527,065 57,842.70
955,899,750 27,245,754 2,990,085.32 4,742,379 520,452 31,988,134  3,510,537.73
40,759,051 556,325,671 61,053,960.77  (135,734,373)  (14,896,169) 420,591,298 46,157,792.01
63,401 1,382,064 151,674.59 (95,623) (10,494) 1,286,441 141,180.48
2,108,690 34,147,492 3,747,516.50 (2,415,854) (265,128) 31,731,638  3,482,388.56
923,069 16,723,661 1,835,338.16 (402,246) (44,144) 16,321,415  1,791,193.71
577,295 1,942,962 213,230.41 (141,845) (15,567) 1,801,118 197,663.67
4,984,184 35,665,244 3,914,082.16 (1,528,889) (156,813) 34,236,355  3,757,268.78
39,605 1,326,696 145,598.28 18,731 2,056 1,345,427 147,653.90
142,614 4,354,918 477,930.49 (1,492,111) (174,726) 2,762,807 303,204.29
102,198,192 65,593,869 7,198,599.19 (3,167,657) (347,635) 62,426,212  6,850,964.65
5,718,830 62,771,982 6.888,911.14  (11,619,722)  (1,275,206) 51,152,260  5,613,704.74
1,527,076 12,547,749 1,377,052.69 (1,171,678) (128,586) 11,376,071 1,248,466.93
2,405,182,168 263,956,717  (504,783,177)  (55,397,430) 1,900,398,991 208,559,287
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1,000,000 3 0.37 ©) () 3 0.32
1,000,000 34 3.69 (10) @ 23 2.53
1,000,000 15 1.62 0 0 15 1.64
1,000,000 0.71 0 0 7 0.75
1,000,000 0.29 () () 3 0.28
1,000,000 1 0.11 ©) ) 1 0.09
1,000,000 28 3.03 (©) () 24 2.67
1,000,000 1 0.09 () () 1 0.09
1,000,000 3 0.30 () () 2 0.25
1,000,000 13 1.47 (©) () 10 1.12
1,000,000 1 0.07 ©) () 1 0.06
1,000,000 21 2.35 ® ) 18 1.98
1,000,000 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
1,000,000 15 1.59 O] ) 10 1.13
1,000,000 22 2.40 (@) ) 20 2.23
1,000,000 16 1.74 (€)) () 15 2.23
1,000,000 18 1.96 ) ) 18 1.94
1,000,000 0.37 ©) ) 3 0.34
1,000,000 0.82 @ ) 7 0.75
1,000,000 34 3.74 ) ) 34 3.73
1,000,000 30 3.24 (10) @ 19 2.13
1,000,000 1 0.07 ©) () 1 0.07
1,000,000 8 0.91 @ () 7 0.82
282 31 (40) ) 242 27
76,872,362 336,793,377 36,961,389.13 (22,191,206) (2,435,374) 314,602,171 34,526,015.25
27,052,496 243,595,448 26,733,382.41 (32,881,622) (3,608,594) 210,713,826 23,124,788.79
11,193,167 51,633,165 5,666,481.74 (14,606,665) (1,603,008) 37,026,501 4,063,473.31
6,910,829 21,662,188  2,377,316.77 (565,766) (62,090) 21,096,422 2,315,226.79
17,104,748 224,085,025 24,592,211.10 (40,546,901) (4,449,820) 183,538,125 20,142,391.50
722,066 2,129,994 233,756.22 20,146 2,211 2,150,140 235,967.17
679,263 10,170,987 1,116,214.94 (3,303,830) (362,579) 6,867,156 753,636.09
1,975,701 32,348,864 3,550,126.13 (608,754) (66,808) 31,740,111 3,483,318.43
494,707 1,747,706 191,802.04 (214,059) (23,492) 1,533,648 168,310.16
65,258 546,793 60,007.81 (33,895) (3.720) 512,898 56,288.00
924,713,548 101,482,688 (114,932,551) (12,613,273) 809,780,997 88,869,415
3,329,895,997 365,439,436 (619,715,768) (68,010,707)  2,710,180,230 297,428,729
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(23,000) (66,686) (7,318) - - (66,686) (7,318)
5,000 116,281 12,761 (807) (89) 115,475 12,673
(8,500) (58,505) (6,421) 139 15 (58,366) (6,405)
(7,000) (173,254) (19,014) 3,256 357 (169,998) (18,656)
722,642 5,000,500 548,780 (107,206) (11,765) 4,893,294 537,015
11,138 6,590 723 (153) an 6,437 706
(13,289,025) (594,467) (65,240) 149,764 16,436 (444,703) (48,804)
29,000 298,932 32,806 318 35 299,250 32,841
(3,000) (60,550) (6,645) (322) (35) (60,872) (6,680)
18,000 269,042 29,526 1,823 200 270,865 29,726
(6,722) (47,012) (5,159) 839 92 (46,173) (5,067)
(820,000) (509,076) (55,869) 8,192 899 (500,885) (54,970)
(5,000) (36,847) 4,043.77 (401) - 44.00 (37,248) (4,088)
4,144,948 454,887 55,443 6,085 4,200,390 460,972
(253,000) (1,040,286) (114,166) 4,876 535 (1,035,409) (113,631)
52,000 176,890 19,413 (4,876) (535) 172,014 18,878
(7,000) (112,402) (12,336) (55) (6) (112,457) (12,342)
(975,797) (107,089) (55) 6) (975,852) (107,095)
3,169,151 347,798 55,388 6,079 3,224,538 353,877
3,333,065,148 365,787,235  (619,660,380)  (68,004,628)  2,713,404,768 297,782,606
1,102 13,249 1,454.06 1,100 121 14,349 1,574.76
50,905 2,316,438 254,217.51 (671,163) (73,657) 1,645,275 180,560.69
67,537 2,502,175 274,601.17 (649,893) (71,323) 1,852,282 203,278.65
1,753 55,622 6,104.19 (13,121) (1,440) 42,501 4,664.23
38,043 351,872 38,616.14 7,291 800 359,163 39,416.34
719,123 1,143,430 125,485.67 149,764 16,436 1,293,194 141,921.53
6,382,785 700,479 (1,176,022) (129,063) 5,206,763 571,416

1,000,000 5 0.58 ) () - -
1,000,000 1 0.15 [6)) ) - -
1,000,000 42 4.59 (42) ) - -
1,000,000 2 0.24 [©)) ) - -
1,000,000 7 0.78 () () - -
1,000,000 45 4.99 (13) ) 32 3.55
1,000,000 83 9.10 (83) ©) - -
1,000,000 14 1.58 14) (&) - -
1,000,000 32 3.53 ®) ) 24 2.66
1,000,000 9 1.00 0 0 9 1.04
1,000,000 12 1.34 1 0 13 1.43
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1,000,000 2 0.18 0 0 2 0.20
1,000,000 22 2.40 2) () - -
1,000,000 17 1.83 an (&) 0 0
1,000,000 6 0.64 6) [€)) - -
1,000,000 17 1.91 an () - -
1,000,000 14 1.50 4 () - -
1,000,000 2 0.24 (@) ) - -
1,000,000 12 1.32 (12) () - -
345 38 (264) (29) 81 9
728,088 15,719,937 1,725,184.46 (3,285,920) (360,613) 12,434,016  1,364,571.12
7,566 111,971 12,288.27 (6,626) (727) 105,345 11,561.06
285,891 2,296,219 251,998.53 (122,911) (13,489) 2,173,308 238,509.68
144,771 2,880,495 316,119.88 (322,208) (35,361) 2,558,287 280,759.20
127,912 2,426,812 266,330.46 (397,782) (43,655) 2,029,030 222,675.85
2,677 47,333 5,194.56 (10,899) (1,196) 36,434 3,998.41
11,740 536,458 58,873.58 (154,567) (16,963) 381,891 41,910.65
54,421 306,954 33,686.62 (7,763) (852) 299,191 32,834.72
78,269 535,994 58,822.69 (77,593) (8,515) 438,402 50,307.28
24,862,172 2,728,499 (4,386,269) (481,371) 20,475,903 2,247,128
31,245,302 3,429,016 (5,562,556) (610,463) 25,682,747 2,818,553
27,000 255,132 27,999.50 (226) (25) 254,906 27,975
(33,140) (63,506) 6,969.49 3,911 429 (59,595) (6,540)
191,626 21,030 3,685 404 195,311 21,434
31,436,928 3,450,046 (5,558,871) (610,058) 25,878,057 2,839,987
10,828 614,866 67,478.46 138,403 15,189 753,269 82,667.47
45,058 1,779,001 195,246.36 1,406,065 154,309 3,185,156 349,554.96
151,805 3,729,827 409,329.82 (21,961) (2,410) 3,707,865 406,919.66
14,441 1,097,169 120,408.84 (169,495) (18,601) 927,674 101,807.57
29,713 765,354 83,993.78 13,036 1,431 778,390 85,424.44
105,650 3,023,300 331,792.01 348,209 38,214 3,371,508 370,006.16
16,813 867,751 95,231.29 (34,014) (3,733) 833,737 91,498.46
85,488 1,424,722 156,356.09 218,988 24,033 1,643,710 180,388.90
17,065 351,376 38,561.77 169,512 18,603 520,889 57,164.92
4,915 179,406 19,688.89 49,623 5,446 229,028 25,134.71
2,644 124,946 13,712.24 (11,230) (1,232) 113,717 12,479.85
17,133 352,634 38,699.82 51,911 5,697 404,545 44,396.79
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6,670 547,567 60,092.76 (47,978) (5,265) 499,589 54,827.45
8,251 3,257,388 357,482.08 (126,750) (13,910) 3,130,638 343,571.86
16,412 327,013 35,888.03 227,112 24,924 554,125 60,812.47
67,065 (18,744,263) - 2,057,089.13 24,436,094 2,681,739 5,691,831 624,650.02
3,665 204,104 22,399.45 46,960 5,154 251,065 27,553.10
105,295 1,541,085 169,126.38 326,496 35,831 1,867,581 204,957.68
35,065 877,027 96,249.36 (9,908) (1,087) 867,119 95,161.96
31,388 1,066,499 117,042.98 28,020 3,075 1,094,520 120,118.05
988 84,473 9,270.47 3,955 434 88,428 9,704.54
13,564 212,862 23,360.49 3,939 432 216,800 23,792.75
9,970 1,118,232 122,720.42 (4,990) (548) 1,113,242 122,172.74
65,116 1,079,916 118,515.35 302,763 33,227 1,382,679 151,742.07
5,882,345 645,558 27,344,759 3,000,951 33,227,104 3,646,509
2,983 173,227 19,010.79 9,967 1,094 183,194 20,104.64
106,698 8,518,197 934,829.57 382,568 41,985 8,900,765 976,814.49,
1,028 59,569 6,537.41 1,131 124 60,700 6,661.55
7,443 295,904 32,474.03 56,996 6,255 352,901 38,729.09
2,308 149,334 16,388.63 (5,424) (595) 143,909 15,793.34
555 28,630 3,141.98 1,936 212 30,566 3,354.42
1,119 129,894 14,255.20 44,207 4,851 174,101 19,106.68
905 43,706 4,796.51 12,363 1,357 56,069 6,153.31
1,529 36,606 4,017.33 59 7 36,665 4,023.84
1,466 69,326 7,608.21 8,694 954 78,020 8,562.33
9,504,393 1,043,060 512,497 56,244 10,016,891 1,099,304
15,386,739 1,688.618 27,857,257 3,057,195 43,243,995 4,745,812
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(7,000) (494,831) - 54,305.22 - - (494,831) (54,305)
(2,250) (169,735) 18,627.53 1,207 133 (168,527) (18,495)
(3,000) (101,290) 11,116.10 - - (101,290) (11,116)
6) (522) 52.27 15) @ (537) (59)
(766,378) (84,106) 1,192 131 (765,185) (83,975)

14,620,361 1,604,512 27,858,449 3,057,325 42,478,810 4,661,837

671,651 2,917,293 241,141.87 (548,730) (60,220) 1,678,563 180,921.55
199,556 14,138,382 1,551,616.72 (6,562,972) (720,253) 7,57,410 831,363.36
993,290 37,044,156 4,065,410.92 275,331 30,216 37,319,487 4,095,627.07
21,149,360 25,576,871 2,806,933.73 (7,301,891) (801,346) 18,274,980 2,005,587.69
1,410,713 10,613,039 1,164,727.91 (230,815) (25,331) 10,382,224 1,139,397.13
1,131,101 7,635,125 837,916.77 (1,645,103) (180,542) 5,990,022 657,374.98
3,138,395 5,750,044 631,038.57 (330,964) (36,322) 5,419,080 594,716.98
75,551 1,295,934 142,222.24 (370,914) (40,706) 925,019 101,516.25
162,572 645,207 70,808.25 (331,990) (36,434) 313,217 34,374.00
171,846 418,110 45,885.49 (174,158) (19,113) 243,952 26,772.56
17,999 284,049 31,172.98 52,339 5,744 336,388 36,916.90
199,549 887,461 97,394.35 (244,706) (26,855) 642,755 70,539.14
363,825 722,402 79,280.01 48,778 5,353 771,180 84,633.19
395,042 5,097,918 559,471.01 3,164,890 347,331 8,262,807 906,801.81
240,132 19,456,688 2,135,274.20 (8,512,631) (934,219) 10,944,056 1,201,055.46
1,471,285 79,603,329 8,736,067.35 (40,195,383) (4,411,242) 39,407,946 4,324,825.07
2,736,475 8,293,618 910,183.15 (1,131,468) (124,173) 7,162,151 786,010.24
9,167,630 50,936,534 5,590,029.95 (5,335,159) (587,702) 45,581,376 5,002,328.07
133,451 2,315,499 254,114.40 219,728 24,114 2,535,226 278,228.41
3,825,283 8,831,293 969,189.20 (862,877) (94,696) 7,968,415 874,493.73
429,169 735,373 82,678.93 (115,956) (12,726) 637,417 69,953.34
23,634 517,968 56,844.36 (13,240) (1,453) 504,727 55,391.32
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1,141,071 21,935,023 2,407,259.06 (2,013,515) (220,973) 19,921,508 2,186,285.88
189,266 1,506,221 164,300.26 (280,077) (30,737) 1,226,144 134,563.16
306,455,535 33,631,963 (72,461,482) (7,952,285) 233,994,053 25,679,677

449,391 2,591,415 284,394.79 (349,452) (38,351) 2,241,962 246,044.13

377,696 1,899,372 208,448.62 (472,768) (51,884) 1,426,605 156,562.71

129,319 413,781 45,410.37 (33,693) (3,698) 380,088 41,712.71

104,497 709,641 77,879.60 (233,323) (25,606) 476,319 52,273.61

8,722 85,014 9,329.81 2,855 313 87,869 9,643.15

5,573 66,853 7,336.73 (9,187) (1,008) 57,666 6,328.53

415,855 149,156 16,369.16 (70,911) (7,782) 78,246 8,587.08

93,678 6,961,721 764,014.03 (3,870,120) (424,726) 3,091,600 339,287.65

16,339 450,066 49,392.47 (24,174) (2,653) 425,891 46,739.44

16,977 110,543 12,131.53 (26,621) (2,922) 83,922 9,210.02

13,437,561 1,474,705 (5,087,394) (558,316) 8,350,167 916,389

319,893,096 35,106,668 (77,548,876)  (8,510,601) 424,344,219 26,596,066
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60,000 147,270 16,162.10 - - 147,270 16,162
7,000 259,964 28,529.74 5,765 633 265,729 29,162
(27,000) (197,396) 21,633.25 (1,312) (144) (198,708) (21,807)
(8,000) (234,979) 25,787.81 67,649 7,424 (167,330) (18,364)
(1,185) (54,794) 6,013.41 788 86 (54,007) (5,927)
18,000 479,600 52,633.71 2,525 277 482,125 52,911
(80,000) (392,470) 43,071.65 (5,289) (580) (397,759) (43,652)
7,193 789 70,126 7,696 77,320 8,485
319,900, 289 35,107,457 (77,478,750)  (8,502,905) 242,421,539 26,604,552
8,453 35,202 3,863.30 447,375 49,097 482,578 52,960.47
2,230,505 18,759,465  2,058,757.47 (5,385,564) (591,039) 13,373,901  1,467,718.79
30,002 358,086 39,298.19 259,458 28,474 617,545 67,772.44
25,726 1,314,837 144,296.75 (410,415) (45,041) 904,422 99,255.79
58,132 1,963,904 215,528.61 (191,033) (20,965) 1,772,871 194,563.73
217,315 9,706,738  1,065,265.96 163,533 17,947 9,870,271 1,083,212.84
512,219 5,476,913 601,063.79 (1,345,692) (147,683) 4,131,221  453,380.82
518,303 574,644 63,064.31 434,204 47,652 1,008,848  110,716.03
52,090 (629,655) - 69,101.52 1,174,478 128,893 544,823 59,791.58
271,408 8,295,009 910,335.78 (3,599,633) (390,042) 4,695,376  515,294.08
51,639 1,612,852 177,002.42 (242,185) (26,579) 1,370,667  150,423.80
200,126 4,944,796 542,666.60 (338,123) (37,107) 4,606,673  505,559.32
45,189 696,577 76,445.88 516,945 56,732 1,213,522 133,177.99
879,635 5,789,030 635,317.07 231,376 25,392 6,020,406  660,709.47
19,951 486,419 53,382.10 625,057 68,597 1,111,476  121,978.97
903,907 5,587,69 635,213.22 (407,490) (44,720) 5,180,129  568,493.22
T
282,53  (1,473,036) - 161,658.32 5,352,392 587,398 3,879,356  425,739.89

138/184



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooDOo00oDo0oDo0ooo00noogdnoE?23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

3 Wt
1,945,569 18,746,487  2,057,333.25 (8,998,709) (987,563) 9,747,779  1,069,769.95
82,245,887 9,026,075 (11,714,025)  (1,285,556) 70,531,862 7,740,519
3
3
(5,000) (32,728) - 3,591.70 2,748 302 (29,980) (3.290)
3
32,000 201,159 22,076.16 56,932 6,248 258,001 28,324
3
24,000 65,157 7,150.65 (18,442) (2,024) 46,715 5,127
3 (5,000) (112,815) - 12,380.86 (2,279) (250) (115,094) (12,631)
3 WTI
(170,000) (807,328) 88,600.22 (44,414) (4,874) (851,742) (93,474)
(686,555) (75,346) (5,455) (599) (692,010) (75,945)
3
81,559,332 8,950,729 (11,719,480)  (1,286,154) 69,839,852 7,664,575

3,778,667,021 414,689,812 (686,683,969)  (75,360,132) 3,091,983,053 339,329,680

1,915,037 210,166 124,936 13,711 2,039,973 223,877

3,780,582,058 414,899,978 (686,559,033)  (75,346,421) 3,094,023,026 339,553,557
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)
1
ETFS 2019 3 31
34,211,131.37 3,754,501
34,211,131.37 3,754,501
0.00 0
1,113,429,757
1
0.00 0
/7))
1 0.03 3
ETFS WTI 2019 3 31
680,354,763.11 74,665,533
680,354,763.11 74,665,533
0.00 0
77,388,216
1
0.00 0
/7))
1 8.79 965
ETFS 2019 3 31
5,685,483.85 623,953
5,685,483.85 623,953
0.00 0
232,281
1
0.00 0
D)
1 24.48 2,686
ETFS 2019 3 31
42,742,510.41 4,690,777
42,742,510.41 4,690,777
0.00 0
14,323,060
1
0.00 0
/7))
1 2.98 327
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ETFS 2019 3 31
200,072,411.05 21,956,947
200,072,411.05 21,956,947
0.00 0
7,375,138
1
0.00 0
(
1 27.13 2,977
ETFS 2019 3 31
526,882,614.51 57,822,733
526,882,614.51 57,822,733
0.00 0
42,146,968
1
0.00 0
(
1 12.50 1,372
ETFS 2019 3 31
61,895,301.09 6,792,700
61,895,301.09 6,792,700
0.00 0
111,616,642
1
0.00 0
(
1 0.55 61
ETFS 2019 3 31
28,803,500.40 3,161,040
28,803,500.40 3,161,040
0.00 0
38,682,490
1
0.00 0
(
1 0.74 82
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ETFS 2019 3 31
10,136,735.43 1,112,456
10,136,735.43 1,112,456
0.00 0
587,304
1
0.00 0
(
1 17.26 1,894
ETFS 2019 3 31
211,867,191.92 23,251,365
211,867,191.92 23,251,365
0.00 0
25,646,846
1
0.00 0
(
1 8.26 907
ETFS 2019 3 31
42,069,819.64 4,616,952
42,069,819.64 4,616,952
0.00 0
10,997,654
1
0.00 0
(
1 3.83 420
ETFS 2019 3 31
353,804,784.16 38,828,306
353,804,784.16 38,828,306
0.00 0
29,293,891
1
0.00 0
(
1 12.08 1,325
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ETFS 2019 3 31
267,175,220.86 29,321,145
267,175,220.86 29,321,145
0.00 0
67,587,020
1
(7 0.00 0
1 3.95 434
ETFS 2019 3 31
19,647,525.49 2,156,218
19,647,525.49 2,156,218
0.00 0
6,849,829
1
. 0.00 0
1 2.87 315
ETFS
11 2016 12 31 1,278,684,100 1,393,353,671 1,069,024,773
12 2017 12 31 1,485,890,500 982,195,305 1,572,719,968
13 2018 12 31 426,629,882 1,043,450,100 955,899,750
ETFS WTI
11 2016 12 31 156,616,829 139,388,973 99,899,136
12 2017 12 31 129,660,206 148,314,724 81,244,618
13 2018 12 31 106,379,552 114,826,926 72,797,244
ETFS
11 2016 12 31 1,046,200 1,231,200 215,970
12 2017 12 31 736,420 763,833 188,557
13 2018 12 31 477,006 522,949 142,614
ETFS
11 2016 12 31 26,816,570 27,103,560 33,526,667

144/184



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooDOo00oDo0oDo0ooo00noogdnoE?23770)
OoooodooooooOoon

12 2017 12 31 39,343,005 31,895,709 40,973,963

13 2018 12 31 42,001,295 58,473,898 24,501,360
ETFS

11 2016 12 31 16,998,445 13,298,428 7,247,266

12 2017 12 31 13,420,587 12,137,053 8,530,800

13 2018 12 31 13,283,699 14,886,588 6,927,911
ETFS

11 2016 12 31 6,243,755 5,256,825 9,974,680

12 2017 12 31 13,495,946 13,512,041 9,958,585

13 2018 12 31 40,149,063 9,348,597 40,759,051
ETFS

11 2016 12 31 139,353,869 72,021,354 129,663,342

12 2017 12 31 169,973,525 140,858,117 158,778,750

13 2018 12 31 128,339,114 184,919,672 102,198,192
ETFS

11 2016 12 31 30,002,600 16,690,205 39,349,390

12 2017 12 31 38,404,462 30,937,397 46,816,455

13 2018 12 31 53,594,785 61,993,068 38,418,172
ETFS

11 2016 12 31 858,900 597,700 642,702

12 2017 12 31 1,111,912 1,039,550 715,064

13 2018 12 31 1,786,647 1,578,642 923,069
ETFS

11 2016 12 31 28,854,400 13,664,726 43,990,154

12 2017 12 31 37,822,909 38,382,640 43,430,423

13 2018 12 31 17,051,463 33,429,390 27,052,496
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ETFS
11 2016 12 31 30,753,500 50,632,523 21,496,289
12 2017 12 31 36,046,528 34,320,300 23,222,517
13 2018 12 31 43,372,284 55,401,634 11,193,167
ETFS
11 2016 12 31 20,904,194 12,403,263 18,119,027
12 2017 12 31 34,862,257 40,388,650 12,592,634
13 2018 12 31 45,201,289 40,689,175 17,104,748
ETFS
11 2016 12 31 27,283,700 31,295,738 41,658,824
12 2017 12 31 48,512,753 32,114,139 58,057,438
13 2018 12 31 67,958,596 49,143,672 76,872,362
ETFS
11 2016 12 31 3,742,503 2,041,723 9,617,924
12 2017 12 31 3,504,990 6,586,290 6,536,624
13 2018 12 31 2,635,277 2,261,072 6,910,829
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1998 Financial
Services (Jersey) Law 1998 FSL
3. FSL
CIF
FSL
FSL
FSL
FSL
FSL

managed entity

manager of a managed
entity MoME

5.1
CIF
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2000
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Incorporated Cell Company ICC
Protected Cell Company PCC
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CIP CIP Commodity
IndexPercentage

88370
ETFSL ETFSL
ETF Securities Limited

Financial Conduct Authority

FCA FCA . i
ofthe United Kingdom
FCA

FCA FCA Handbook
FCA

FCA FCA Glossary

2000
FSMA FSMA
RIS RIS

Regulatorylnformation Service

Business Day

Settlement Price

Principal Amount

Principal Amount

Management Fee

106921

ManJder
ETFS Management Company

(Jersey) Limited
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R&H Fund
Services (Jersey) Limited
Administration ( y)
Agreement
2012 12
14
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Relevant Exchange
UK Euroclear
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Agreed Pricing
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Pool
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Market
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Market
DisruptionDay

Index Oversight

Committee
Jersey
EC2V 7EX 100 5
Fifth Floor, 100 Wood Street, London EC2V
7TEX,England
Trustee
The Law
DebentureTrust Corporation p.l.c.
class
Redemption

Redemption Amount
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3
Commodity Indices .
Commodity Index
Longer Dated
Commodity Contract
Longer Dated
Commodity
Securities
106817
HoldCo
ETFS Holdings (Jersey) Limited
Registers
104
1 104
JE1 1ES
Queensway
House,Hilgrove Street, St. Helier, Jersey JE1 1ES
Registrar Computershare
InvestorServices (Jersey)Limited
Registrar
2012 12 14
Agreement
Board
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Authorized
Participant

Authorized
Participant
Agreement

Authorised Person FSMA

FSMA
Exempt Person

Pricing Day

90959
Issuer ETFS
Commodity Securities Limited
Facility Agreement
y g MLI
Bloomberg 3
Commodity Index 3 DJ-UBSCI-F3

Month forwards"

Bloomberg
Commodity IndexsM DJ-UBSCI

Programme

Micro Securities

162/184



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooDOo00oDo0oDo0ooo00noogdnoE?23770)
Ooooodoodnoodonn

Forward Micro and
Commodity
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Forward
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Securities” or
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Securities”

Application

Applicant

Application Form

Application Moneys

} CME Index
License Allowance
ETFSL

Rebalancing

category

London Stock
Exchange

London Business
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ETFS
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2017 12 31
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ISA 1SA(UK)
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3,530,411,481 2017 12 31
2016 3,335,980,666 99
2 7
12
IFRS
2( )
12(9)

IFRS
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3,506,478,237
2016
3,340,966,977

2
8 12

IFRS

IFRS
IFRS

IFRS

IFRS
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3,572,778,104
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www. frc.org.uk/auditorsresposibilities.

1991 113A

KPMG
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Independent Auditor®s Report to the Members of ETFS Commodity Securities Limited

Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of ETFS Commodity Securities Limited (the“ Company” ),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then
ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2017, and
of the Company®s financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended;

are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies (Jersey)
Law, 1991.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK))
and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical
requirements including FRC Ethical Standards as applied to listed entities. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters: our assessment of the risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which had
the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and
directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Inarriving at our audit opinion above, the key
audit matters, were as follows:
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The risk Our response
Valuation of Commodity Basis: Our audit procedures included:
Contracts

Commodity Contracts represent 99% of Internal Controls: Assessed the
USD3,530,411,481; the Company*s total assets at 31 design, implementation, and

(2016: USD3, 335,980, 666)

Refer to the accounting policy
innote 2, and to disclosures

innotes 7 and 12.

December 2017.

Commodity Contracts are used to back
Commodity Securities issued by the
Company. Commodity Contracts are

accounted for at fair value.

In the absence of a quoted price inan
active market for the Commodity
Contracts, the Company determines
fair value by revaluing the Commodity
Contracts entered into at the
reporting date to their Contractual

Value, as described in notes 2(ii) and
12(9).

Contractual Value is calculated, in
accordance with the formula set out in
the prospectus, to reflect the change
in the relevant commodity index,
taking into account the payment of a

management fee and a daily spread.

Risk:

Incorrect application of the formula
used to calculate Contractual Value
may cause the reported fair value of
Commodity Contracts to be materially

misstated.

operating effectiveness of controls
over valuation of the Commodity

Contracts.

Evaluation of fair value
methodology: Assessed the
appropriateness of the methodology
used to determine fair value, and
considered whether Contractual Value
represents fair value in accordance
with IFRS.

Independent confirmation: Obtained
independent confirmation from the
Commodity Contract Counterparty of
the Contractual Value of Commodity
Contracts entered into by the Company
at the reporting date.

Independent evaluation:
Recalculated the Contractual Value
for a selection of Commodity
Contracts, selected based on the most
significant classes of Commodity
Securities in issue at the reporting
date by value, using index data
obtained froma third party source.
Compared the recalculated
Contractual Values to those
determined by the Company.

Assessing disclosures: Assessed the
fair value disclosures in the
financial statements for compliance
with IFRS requirements.
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The risk Our response
Valuation of Commodity Basis: Our audit procedures included:
Securities

The issuance of Commodity Securities Internal Controls: Assessed the
USD3,506,478,237; is central to the Company"s principal design, implementation, and

(2016 USD3, 340, 966, 977)

Refer to the accounting policy
innote 2, and to disclosures

innotes 8and 12.

activity. Commodity Securities
allow investors to gain long or short
exposure to movements in commodity

indices.

Commodity Securities are accounted

for at fair value.

The Company determines fair value by
revaluing the Commodity Securities in
issue at the reporting date to prices
quoted for the Commodity Securities

in active markets.

The Company discloses at the foot of
the Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income the impact
of a non-statutory adjustment to the
value of Commodity Securities to
recognise that there is an accounting
valuation difference between the
Commodity Securities and the
underlying Commodity Contracts which
results from the Company*s
application of IFRS fair value

principles.

Risk:

The reported value of the Commodity
Securities may diverge from fair
value due to the use of an

inappropriate market price.

Disclosure of a non-statutory
adjustment may not be appropriate to

achieve fair presentation under IFRS.

operating effectiveness of controls
over the valuation of Commodity
Securities.

Independent evaluation: Assessed
the appropriateness of the pricing
source and considered whether the
market price represents fair value in
accordance with IFRS. Performed an
independent evaluation of fair value
based on published market prices, and
compared to those determined by the
Company.

Assessing disclosures: Assessed the
fair value disclosures in the
financial statements, including
those relating to the non-statutory
adjustment, for compliance with IFRS
requirements. Considered the
Company*s basis for the disclosure of
the non-statutory adjustment in the
context of reducing the perceived
misleading aspects of compliance with
IFRS and achieving a fair

presentation.
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Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the financial statements as a whole was set at USD17.9 million, determined with
reference to a benchmark of total assets of USD3,572,778,104 as at 31 December 2017, of which it
represents 0.5% (2016: 0.5%) .

We reported to the Audit Committee all corrected or uncorrected misstatements we identified
through our audit exceeding USD895,000, in addition to other identified misstatements that
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Our audit of the Company was undertaken to the materiality level specified above, which has
informed our identification of significant risks of material misstatement and the associated
audit procedures performed in those areas as detailed above.

e have nothing to report on going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least twelve months from the date
of approval of the financial statements. We have nothing to report in these respects.

e have nothing to report on the other information in the Directors” Report

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Directors” Report
together with the financial statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on
our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or
inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we
have not identified material misstatements in the other information.

e have nothing to report on other matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the fol lowing matters where the Companies (Jersey) Law,
1991 requires us to report toyou if, inour opinion:

proper accounting records have not been kept by the Company;

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Respective responsibilities

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 7, the Directors are responsible for:
the preparation of the financial statements including being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and
assessing the Company s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they
either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auditor”s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion
inanauditor®s report. Reasonable assurance is ahigh level of assurance, but does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC*s website at
www. frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of this report and restrictions on its use by persons other than the Company °s members
as a body

This report is made solely to the Company s members, as a body, in accordance with Article 113A of
the Companies (Jersey) Law, 1991. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the Company"s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor™s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company*s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Steven Hunt
For and on behal f of KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Chartered Accountants and Recognized Auditors, Jersey

27 April 2018
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ETFS
ETFS
2018 12 31
2018 12 31
1991

ISA 1SA(UK)
FRC
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3,091,983,052 2018 12 31
2017 3,530,411,481 99
(2017 99 )
2 7
12
IFRS
2(C )
12(9)

IFRS
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3,121,116,614
2017
3,506,478,237

2

8 12
IFRS

IFRS
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3,121,103,273
15.6
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1SA(UK)

FRC

www. frc.org.uk/auditorsresposibilities.

1991 113A

KPMG

2019 3 11
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Independent Auditor®s Report to the Members of ETFS Commodity Securities Limited

Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of ETFS Commodity Securities Limited (the

“ Company” ), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2018, and of the Company®s financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended;

are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
(Jersey) Law, 1991.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (I1SAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK
ethical requirements including FRC Ethical Standards as applied to listed entities. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters: our assessment of the risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us,
including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the
allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. In arriving at our audit opinion above, the key audit matters, were as follows:
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The risk

Our response

Valuation of Commodity
Contracts

UsD3,091,983,053;
(2017: USD3,530,411,481)

Refer to the accounting
policy in note 2, and to
disclosures in notes 7 and
12.

Basis:

Commodity Contracts represent 99%
of the Company®s total assets at 31
December 2018.

Commodity Contracts are used to
back Commodity Securities issued by
the Company. Commodity Contracts

are accounted for at fair value.

In the absence of a quoted price in
an active market for the Commodity
Contracts, the Company determines
fair value by revaluing the
Commodity Contracts entered into at
the reporting date to their
Contractual Value, as described in
notes 2(ii) and 12(g).

Contractual Value is calculated, in
accordance with the formula set out
in the prospectus, to reflect the
change in the relevant commodity
index, taking into account the
payment of a management fee and a
daily spread.

Risk:

Incorrect application of the
formula used to calculate
Contractual Value may cause the
reported fair value of Commodity
Contracts to be materially
misstated.

Our audit procedures included:

Internal Controls: Assessed the
design and implementation of
controls over valuation of the

Commodity Contracts.

Evaluation of fair value
methodology: Assessed the
appropriateness of the methodology
used to determine fair value, and
considered whether Contractual
Value represents fair value in

accordance with IFRS.

Independent confirmation: Obtained
independent confirmation from the
Commodity Contract Counterparty of
the Contractual Value of Commodity
Contracts entered into by the

Company at the reporting date.

Independent evaluation:
Recalculated the Contractual Value
for a selection of Commodity
Contracts, selected based on the
most significant classes of
Commodity Securities in issue at
the reporting date by value, using
index data obtained from a third
party source. Compared the
recalculated Contractual Values to

those determined by the Company.

Assessing disclosures: Assessed
the fair value disclosures in the
financial statements for compliance

with IFRS requirements.
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The risk

our reponse

Valuation of Commodity
Securities

UsD3,121,116,614;
(2017: USD3,506,478,237)

Refer to the accounting
policy in note 2, and to
disclosures in notes 8 and
12.

Basis:

The issuance of Commodity
Securities is central to the
Company®s principal activity.
Commodity Securities allow
investors to gain long or short
exposure to movements in commodity

indices.

Commodity Securities are accounted

for at fair value.

The Company determines fair value
by revaluing the Commodity
Securities in issue at the
reporting date to prices quoted for
the Commodity Securities in active
markets.

The Company discloses at the foot
of the Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income the
impact of a non-statutory
adjustment to the value of
Commodity Securities to recognise
that there is an accounting
valuation difference between the
Commodity Securities and the
underlying Commodity Contracts
which results from the Company®s
application of IFRS fair value

principles.

Risk:

The reported value of the Commodity
Securities may diverge from fair
value due to the use of an

inappropriate market price.

Disclosure of a non-statutory
adjustment may not be appropriate
to achieve fair presentation under
IFRS.

Our audit procedures included:

Internal Controls: Assessed the
design and implementation of
controls over the valuation of

Commodity Securities.

Independent evaluation: Assessed
the appropriateness of the pricing
source and considered whether the
market price represents fair value
in accordance with IFRS. Performed
an independent evaluation of fair
value based on published market
prices, and compared to those

determined by the Company.

Assessing disclosures: Assessed
the fair value disclosures in the
financial statements, including
those relating to the non-statutory
adjustment, for compliance with
IFRS requirements. Considered the
Company*s basis for the disclosure
of the non-statutory adjustment in
the context of reducing the
perceived misleading aspects of
compliance with IFRS and achieving

a fair presentation.
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Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the financial statements as a whole was set at USD15.7 million, determined
with reference to a benchmark of total assets of USD3,130,778,921 as at 31 December 2018,
of which it represents 0.5% (2017: 0.5%).

We reported to the Audit Committee all corrected or uncorrected misstatements we
identified through our audit exceeding USD785,000, in addition to other identified
misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Our audit of the Company was undertaken to the materiality level specified above, which
has informed our identification of significant risks of material misstatement and the
associated audit procedures performed in those areas as detailed above.

e have nothing to report on going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern
basis of accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that
may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least twelve
months from the date of approval of the financial statements. We have nothing to report
in these respects.

We have nothing to report on the other information in the Directors® Report

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Directors® Report
together with the financial statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether,
based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially
misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based
solely on that work we have not identified material misstatements in the other
information.

We have nothing to report on other matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Jersey)
Law, 1991 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

proper accounting records have not been kept by the Company;

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Respective responsibilities

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 7, the Directors are
responsible for: the preparation of the financial statements including being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and assessing the Company®s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern;
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue our opinion in an auditor™s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC"s website at
www. frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of this report and restrictions on its use by persons other than the Company”s
members as a body

This report is made solely to the Company*s members, as a body, in accordance with Article
113A of the Companies (Jersey) Law, 1991. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Company"s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor®s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company®s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Steven Hunt
For and on behalf of KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Chartered Accountants and Recognized Auditors, Jersey

11 March 2019
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